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Date: September 9, 2022 

To, 

BSE Limited 

Phiroze Jeejeeboy Towers 

Dalal Street, 

Mumbai — 400 001 

Subject: Intimation of date of 38" Annual General Meeting 

Ref: Karnavati Finance Limited (Security ID/Code: KARNAVATI/ 538928) 

Dear Sir / Madam, 

We wish to inform the Exchange that the 38' Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) of the Karnavati 
Finance Limited (“the Company”) will be held on Friday, September 30, 2022 at 12.30 p.m. (IST) a 
through Video Conferencing (VC) or other Audio Visual Means (OVAM) in compliance with the 
applicable circulars of Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) and SEBI. 

The copy of Notice of 38'" of Annual General Meeting and Annual report for the Financial Year 2021- 
22 will be submitted to exchange as soon as the same be dispatched to the Shareholders of the 
Company through email. 

Kindly take same on records 

  

JAY RAMANBHAI MORZARIA ey 
v 

Chairman & Managing Directs SO 
DIN: 02338864 

  
Registered Office : 

_——105, Palm Spring Centre, Above Croma, Near New Infinity Mall, Link Road, Malad (West) Mumbai - 400064 
“ Phone : 022 28809111 Website : www.karnavatifinancelimited.com 
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Date: September 9, 2022 

To, 

BSE Limited 

Phiroze Jeejeeboy Towers 

Dalal Street, 

Mumbai — 400 001 

Subject: Submission of Notice of 38°" Annual General Meeting 

Ref: Karnavati Finance Limited (Security ID/Code: KARNAVATI/ 538928) 

Dear Sir / Madam, 

We wish to inform the Exchange Pursuant to Regulation 34 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, we hereby submit the Annual Report of the Company for 

the financial year 2021-22 (“Annual Report”) along with the Notice convening the 38" Annual General 

Meeting (“AGM”) of the Karnavati Finance Limited (“the Company”) scheduled to be held on Friday, 

September 30, 2022 at 12.30 p.m. (IST) through Video Conferencing (VC) or other Audio Visual Means 

(OVAM) in compliance with the applicable circulars of Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) and SEBI to 

transact the business mentioned in the Notice of 38" Annual General Meeting. Copies of which are 

being e-mailed to the shareholders of the Company whose e-mail ids are registered with the 

Company’s RTA or their respective Depository Participant. 

The Annual Report along with the Notice is also available on the website of the Company and can be 

accessed at https://karnavatifinancelimited.com/ 

The remote e-voting period shall commence on Monday, September 26, 2022 at 09:00 A.M. (IST) and 

shall end on Thursday, September 29th, 2022 at 05:00 P.M. (IST). 

This is for your information and dissemination. 

    KARNAVATI FINANCE LIMITED 

TY 
JAY RAMANBHAI MORZARIA 

Chairman & Managing Director 

DIN: 02338864 

Encl: Notice of 38'* AGM 

  

Registered Office : 

———S 705, Palm Spring Centre, Above Croma, Near New Infinity Mall, Link Road, Malad (West) Mumbai - 400064 

Phone : 022 28809111 Website : www.karnavatifinancelimited.com 
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CORPORATE INFORMATION 

KARNAVATI FINANCE LIMITED (CIN: L65910MH1984PLC034724) 

REGISTERED OFFICE              CORPORATE OFFICE 

 

BOA

RD 

OF 

DIRE

CTORS 

Name (DIN) Designation 

Mr. Jay Ramanbhai Morzaria 02338864 Chairman &Managing Director 

Mr. Raman Pragjibhai Morzaria 00203310 Whole-Time Director 
Mr. Vineshkumar Popatlal Makadia 00362318 Non Executive Director 

Mrs. Birmda Minoobhai Bilimoria 08196034 Non-Executive (Independent) Director 

Mr. Parth Chandreshbhai Maniar 07980886 Non-Executive (Independent) Director 
Mrs. Vinita Ajaybhai Parekh 08739757 Non-Executive (Independent) Director 

 

KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL   AUDIT COMMITTEE 

Name Designation Name Designation 
Mr. Kush Ramanbhai 

Morzaria 
Chief Financial Officer Mr. Parth Chandreshbhai 

Maniar 
Chairperson 

Ms. Akanksha Rai Company Secretary & 
Compliance Officer 

Mrs. Birmda Minoobhai 

Bilimoria 
Member 

Mr.Jay Ramanbhai 

Morzaria 
Member 

 

STAKEHOLDER’S RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE  NOMINATION & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE 

Name Designation Name Designation 

Mr. Parth Chandreshbhai 
Maniar 

Chairperson Mr. Parth Chandreshbhai 
Maniar 

Chairperson 

Mrs. Birmda Minoobhai 
Bilimoria 

Member Mrs. Birmda Minoobhai 
Bilimoria 

Member 

Mr.Jay Ramanbhai 
Morzaria 

Member Mrs. Vinita Ajaybhai 
Parekh 

Member 

 

AUDITORS 

Statutory Auditor Internal Auditor Secretarial Auditor 

D G M S & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 
Office No. 10, VihangVihar, Opp. 
Gautam Park, Panchpakhdi, Thane 
(West) – 400602 
Mail ID:bhiwandi.dma@gmail.com 
Contact No. 022 25452965 

M/S. Suresh Tejwani& Co. 
109, 110 City Arcade, Near D.S.P. 
Bunglow, Tin Batti-361001, 
Jamnagar-361001, Gujarat. 
Mail ID:suresh.tejwani@gmail.com 
Contact No. : 0288 2556368 

M/s. Renu Bang & Associates 
Practicing Company Secretaries 
304, Rinku Tower, Bageshree Park, 
Shiv Sena Gally, Bhayander (West), 
Thane - 401101 
Mail ID: bangrenu@gmail.com 
Contact No.: +91 9930405089 
 

 

REGISTRAR & SHARE TRANSFER AGENT BANKERS 
Satellite Corporate Services Private Limited 

Office no. A/106 & 107, Dattani Plaza, East West Compound, 
ICICI Bank 

IDBI Bank 

705, Palm Spring Centre, Above Croma, Near New Infinity 

Mall, Link Road, Malad (West), Mumbai -400064, 

Maharashtra. 

Contact No. : 022 28809111 

“Vraj”, 05th Floor, Opp. President  Hotel, Near Bhumi Press, 

Limda Lane, Jamnagar-361001, Gujarat. 

Contact No. : 0288 2663042 

E-Mail ID:karnavatifinance@gmail.com 

Website:www.karnavatifinancelimited.com 
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Andheri Kurla Road, Safed pool, Sakinaka, Mumbai-400072  

E-Mail ID :service@satellitecorporate.com 

Contact No. : 022 28520461/462 

 

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 

Notice is hereby given that the 38th Annual General Meeting of the Members of Karnavati Finance Limited will be held at on Saturday, 

September 30, 2022 at 12.30 p.m. through video conferencing (VC)/Other Audio Visual Means (OAVM) to transact the following 

businesses: 

 

ORDINARY BUSINESSES:- 

1. To receive, consider and adopt audited financial statement of the Company for the financial year ended on March 31, 2022 and the 

reports of the Directors’ and the Auditors’ thereon. 

2. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Vineshkumar Popatlal Makadia (DIN: 00362318), Non-Executive Non Independent Director 

of the Company, who retires by rotation and being eligible, seek re-appointment. 

Explanation: Based on the terms of appointment, executive directors and Non Executive Directors are subject to retirement by rotation. 

Mr. Vineshkumar Popatlal Makadia (DIN: 00362318), who was appointed as Non-Executive Non Independent Director on the Board, 

retires by rotation and, being eligible, seeks re-appointment. 

To the extent that Mr. Vineshkumar Popatlal Makadia (DIN: 00362318) is required to retire by rotation, he would need to be 

reappointed as such. Therefore, shareholders are requested to consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an ordinary 

resolution: 

“RESOLVED THAT, pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the 

approval of the members of the Company be, and is hereby accorded to the reappointment of Mr. Vineshkumar Popatlal Makadia (DIN: 

00362318) as such, to the extent that he is required to retire by rotation.” 

 

SPECIAL BUSINESS:- 

1. Approval of Material Related Party Transactions 

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary resolution: 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Regulation 23 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations 

and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“LODR”) and such other provisions of law as was applicable and as may be amended 

from time to time, consent of the Members of the Company, be and is hereby accorded to the Board of Directors and/or duly constituted 

Committee thereof for the following arrangements/ transactions/ contracts (including any other transfer of resources, services or 

obligations) entered/to be entered into by the Company and also for every financial year hereafter: 

 

Sr. 

No. 

Name of 

Related Party 

 

Nature of 

Relationship 

Type of Transaction(s) Maximum Value* of 

Transaction in every 

financial year 

 

1. Mr. Jay 

Morzaria 

Chairman and 

Managing Director 

Receipt of Unsecured 

Loan from him and 

payment of Interest 

thereon at rate not 

exceeding the Bank Rate 

or 8.00%, whichever is 

higher 

Up to Rs. 10.00 Crore 

individually or in 

aggregate and 

payment of interest 

thereon not exceeding 

the Bank Rate or 

8.00%, whichever is 

higher 

2. Mr. Raman 

Morzaria 

Whole-time 

Director 

Receipt of Unsecured 

Loan from him and 

payment of Interest 

thereon at rate not 

exceeding the Bank Rate 

or 8.00%, whichever is 

higher 

Up to Rs. 10.00 Crore 

individually or in 

aggregate and 

payment of interest 

thereon not exceeding 

the Bank Rate or 

8.00%, whichever is 

higher 

   Expected value of transaction(s) to be entered into individually or taken together with previous transactions during a financial year 

2021-22, 2022-23, 23-24. 
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RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the consent of the members of the Company be and is hereby accorded to the Board of Directors of 

the Company and/or a duly constituted Committee thereof, to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as may be necessary, expedient 

or desirable including any negotiation/ renegotiation/ modification/ ratification/ amendments to or termination thereof, of the subsisting 

arrangements/ transactions/ contracts or any future arrangements/ transactions/ contracts and to make or receive/ pay monies or to 

perform all other obligations in terms of such arrangements/transactions/ contracts with the Related parties. 

 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the consent of the Company, be and is hereby accorded to the Board of Directors of the Company 

and/or a duly constituted Committee thereof, to severally do or cause to be done all such acts, matters, deeds and things and to settle any 

queries, difficulties, doubts that may arise with regard to any of the transactions with the related parties and severally execute such 

contracts, agreements, documents and writings and to make such filings, as may be necessary, expedient or desirable for the purpose of 

giving full effect to this resolution, in the best interest of the Company.” 

 

 

 

Registered Office                       By order of the Board 

705, Palm Spring Centre, Above Croma, Near New     For Karnavati Finance Limited 

Above Croma, Near New Infinity Mall, Link Road,     Jay Ramanbhai Morzaria 

Malad (West), Mumbai -400064, Maharashtra.                    Chairman & Managing Director  

         DIN: 02338864 

 

Place: Mumbai            

Date: September 9, 2022 

 

Notes: 

1. In view of the continuing COVID-19 pandemic, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) has vide its circular nos.14/2020 and 

17/2020 dated April 8, 2020 and April 13, 2020 respectively, in relation to “Clarification on passing of ordinary and special 

resolutions by companies under the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder on account of the threat posed by Covid-

19”, circular no. 20/2020 dated May 5, 2020 in relation to “Clarification on holding of annual general meeting (AGM) through 

video conferencing (VC) or other audio visual means (OAVM)” and Circular no. 02/2021 dated January 13, 2021 in relation to 

“Clarification on holding of annual general meeting (AGM) through video conferencing (VC) or other audio visual means 

(OAVM)” (collectively referred to as “MCA Circulars”) and Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”) vide its circular no. 

SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD1/CIR/P/2020/79 dated May 12, 2020 in relation to “Additional relaxation in relation to compliance with 

certain provisions of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015- Covid-19 pandemic” and circular 

no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD2/CIR/P/2021/11dated January 15, 2021 in relation to “Relaxation from compliance with certain 

provisions of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 due to the CoVID-19 pandemic” 

(collectively referred to as “SEBI Circulars”) permitted the holding of the Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) through VC / 

OAVM, without the physical presence of the Members at a common venue. In compliance with the MCA Circulars and SEBI 

Circulars, the AGM of the members of the Company is being held through VC / OAVM. The registered office of the Company 

shall be deemed to be the venue for the AGM. 

2. Information regarding appointment/re-appointment of Director(s) and Explanatory Statement in respect of special businesses to be 

transacted pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 and/or Regulation 36(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Secretarial Standard II is annexed hereto. 

3. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 105 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made there under, a Member entitled to attend and 

vote at the AGM is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote on his/ her behalf and the proxy need not be a Member of the 

Company. Since this AGM is being held through VC / OAVM, physical attendance of Members has been dispensed with. 

Accordingly, the facility for appointment of proxies by the Members will not be available for this AGM and hence the Proxy Form, 

Attendance Slip and route map of the AGM are not annexed to this Notice.  

4. Institutional shareholders/corporate shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF’s, NRI’s, etc.) are required to send a scanned 

copy (PDF/JPG Format) of their respective Board or governing body resolution/authorization etc., authorizing their representative 

to attend the AGM on their behalf and to vote through remote e-voting. The said Resolution/Authorization shall be sent to the 

Scrutinizer by email through their registered email address to alpesh.panchal@kjb.llp with copies marked to the Company at 

karnavatifinance@gmail.com and to National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) at evoting@nsdl.co.in. 

5. The attendance of the Members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM will be counted for the purpose of reckoning the quorum 

under Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

6. Since the AGM will be held through VC/OAVM, the route map of the venue of the Meeting is not annexed hereto. 

7. Notice of AGM along with Annual Report 2021-22 is being sent only through electronic mode to those Members whose email 

addresses are registered with the Company/ Depositories. Member may note that Notice and Annual Report 2021-22 has been 

uploaded on the website of the Company at karnavatifinance@gmail.com. The Notice can also be accessed from the websites of 

the Stock Exchange i.e. BSE Limited at www.bseindia.com and the AGM Notice is also available on the website of NSDL i.e. 

www.evoting.nsdl.com. 

8. Those shareholders who have not yet registered their e-mail address are requested to get their e-mail addresses submitted, by 

mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in
mailto:karnavatifinance@gmail.com
http://www.bseindia.com/
http://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
http://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
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following the procedure given below: 

9. In case shares are held in physical mode, please provide Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned copy of the share certificate 

(front and back), PAN (self-attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self-attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email 

to karnavatifinance@gmail.com. 

10. In case shares are held in demat mode, please provide DPID-CLID (16-digit DPID + CLID or 16-digit beneficiary ID), Name, 

client master or copy of Consolidated Account statement, PAN (self-attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self-attested 

scanned copy of Aadhar Card) to karnavatifinance@gmail.com. 

11. Alternatively, member may send an e-mail request to evoting@nsdl.co.in for obtaining User ID and Password by proving the 

details mentioned in Point (a) or (b) as the case may be. 

12. It is clarified that for permanent submission of e-mail address, the shareholders are however requested to register their email 

address, in respect of electronic holdings with the depository through the concerned depository participants and in respect of 

physical holdings with the Company’s Registrar and Share Transfer Agent, Satellite Corporate Services Private Limited, having its 

office at A Wing, Office No. 106 and 107 Dattani Plaza Andheri Kurla Road, East West Industrial Estate Sakinaka, Mumbai-

400072, by following the due procedure. 

13. Those shareholders who have already registered their e-mail address are requested to keep their e-mail addresses validated with 

their depository participants / the Company’s Registrar and Share Transfer Agent, Satellite Corporate Services Private Limited to 

enable servicing of notices / documents / annual Reports electronically to their e-mail address. 

14. It is clarified that for permanent submission of e-mail address, the shareholders are however requested to register their email 

address, in respect of electronic holdings with the depository through the concerned depository participants, by following the due 

procedure. 

15. Members seeking any information with regard to the accounts or any matter to be placed at the AGM or who would like to ask 

questions or registered themselves as Speaker, are requested to write to the Company mentioning their name demat account 

number/folio number, email id, mobile number at karnavatifinance@gmail.com on or before September 30, 2022 so as to enable 

the management to keep the information ready. The Company reserves the right to restrict the number of speakers depending on 

the availability of time for the AGM. 

16. Members holding the shares in dematerialized form are requested to notify immediately, the information regarding change of 

address and bank particulars to their respective Depository Participant. 

17. The Register of Directors’ and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding maintained under Section 170 of the Companies 

Act, 2013, the Register of contracts or arrangements in which the Directors are interested under Section 189 of the Companies Act, 

2013 and all other documents referred to in the Notice will be available for inspection in electronic mode. 

 

18. PROCESS AND MANNER FOR MEMBERS OPTING FOR VOTING THROUGH ELECTRONIC MEANS AND 

PARTICIPATING AT THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING THROUGH VC/OAVM: 

i. The Company is providing facility of remote e-voting to its Members in respect of the business to be transacted at the 

AGM. For this purpose, the Company has entered into an agreement with NSDL, as the Authorised e-voting agency for 

facilitating voting through electronic means. The facility of casting votes by a member using remote e-voting as well as 

e-voting system on the date of the AGM will be provided by NSDL. 

ii. The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company will be closed from Thursday September 22, 2022 

to Saturday October 1, 2022 (both days inclusive) and same will be re-opened from Sunday October 2, 2022 onwards. 

Members whose names are recorded in the Register of Members or in the Register of Beneficial Owners maintained by 

the Depositories as on the Cut-off date i.e. Thursday, September 22, 2022 shall be entitled to avail the facility of remote 

e-voting as well as e-voting system on the date of the AGM. Any recipient of the Notice, who has no voting rights as on 

the Cut-off date, shall treat this Notice as intimation only. 

iii. A person who has acquired the shares and has become a member of the Company after the dispatch of the Notice of the 

AGM and prior to the Cut-off date i.e. Saturday September 22, 2022 shall be entitled to exercise his/her vote either 

electronically i.e. remote e-voting or e-voting system on the date of the AGM by following the procedure mentioned in 

this part. 

iv. The remote e-voting will commence from 9.00 a.m. (IST) on Monday, September 26, 2022 and will end on up to 5.00 

p.m. (IST) on Thursday, September 29, 2022. During this period, the members of the Company holding shares as on the 

Cut-off date i.e. Thursday, September 22, 2022 may cast their vote electronically. The members will not be able to cast 

their vote electronically beyond the date and time mentioned above and the remote e-voting module shall be disabled for 

voting by NSDL thereafter. 

v. Once the vote on a resolution is cast by the member, he/she shall not be allowed to change it subsequently or cast the 

vote again. 

vi. The voting rights of the members shall be in proportion to their share in the paid-up equity share capital of the Company 

as on the Cut-off date i.e. Thursday, September 22, 2022 

vii. The Company has appointed M/s KJB & Co. LLP, Practicing Company Secretaries (ICSI Unique Code:-

L2020MH006600), to act as the Scrutinizer for conducting the remote e-voting process as well as the e-voting system on 

the date of the AGM, in a fair and transparent manner. 

mailto:karnavatifinance@gmail.com
mailto:karnavatifinance@gmail.com
mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in
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19. INSTRUCTIONS FOR CASTING VOTES BY REMOTE E-VOTING 

The remote e-voting period begins on 9.00 a.m. (IST) on Monday, September 26, 2022 and will end on up to 5.00 p.m. (IST) on 

Thursday, September 29, 2022. The remote e-voting module shall be disabled by NSDL for voting thereafter. The Members, whose 

names appear in the Register of Members / Beneficial Owners as on the record date (cut-off date) i.e Thursday, September 22, 2022 

may cast their vote electronically. The voting right of shareholders shall be in proportion to their share in the paid-up equity share 

capital of the Company as on the cut-off date, being Thursday, September 22, 2022. 

 

How do I vote electronically using NSDL e-Voting system? 

The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system consists of “Two Steps” which are mentioned below: 

Step 1: Access to NSDL e-Voting system 
 

A) Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode 

In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual shareholders 

holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository 

Participants. Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and email ID in their demat accounts in order to access e-

Voting facility. 

 

Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode is given below: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Type of shareholders Login Method 

Individual Shareholders holding 

securities in demat mode with 

NSDL. 

1. If you are already registered for NSDL IDeAS facility, please visit the e-

Services website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following 

URL: https://eservices.nsdl.com/either on a Personal Computer or on a 

mobile. Once the home page of e-Services is launched, click on the 

“Beneficial Owner” icon under “Login” which is available under 

“IDeAS” section. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your 

User ID and Password. After successful authentication, you will be able 

to see e-Voting services. Click on “Access to e-Voting” under e-Voting 

services and you will be able to see e-Voting page. Click on options 

available against company name or e-Voting service provider – NSDL 

and you will be re-directed to NSDL e-Voting website for casting your 

vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & 

voting during the meeting. 

2. If the user is not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is 

available at https://eservices.nsdl.com. Select “Register Online for 

IDeAS”Portal or click 

athttps://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp 
 

3. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the 

following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal 

Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Voting system is 

launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under 

‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new screen will open. You will have to 

enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digitdemat account number held 

with NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on the 

screen. After successful authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL 

Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on options 

available against company name or e-Voting service provider - NSDL 

and you will be redirected to e-Voting website of NSDLfor casting your 

vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & 

voting during the meeting. 

http://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
http://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
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Individual Shareholders holding 

securities in demat mode with CDSL 

1. Existing users who have opted for Easi / Easiest, they can login through 

their user id and password. Option will be made available to reach e- 

Voting page without any further authentication. The URL for users to 

login to Easi / Easiest arehttps://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/loginor 

www.cdslindia.com and click on New System Myeasi. 

2. After successful login of Easi/Easiest the user will be also able to see the 

E Voting Menu. The Menu will have links of e-Voting service provider 

i.e. NSDL. Click on NSDL to cast your vote. 

3. If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is available 

at https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration/EasiRegistration 

4. Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing 

demat Account Number and PAN No. from a link in www.cdslindia.com 

home page. The system will authenticate the user by sending OTP on 

registered Mobile & Email as recorded in the demat Account. After 

successful authentication, user will be provided links for the respective 
ESP i.e. NSDLwhere the e-Voting is in progress. 

Individual Shareholders (holding 

securities in demat mode) login 

through their depository participants 

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through your 

Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility. Once 

login, you will be able to see e-Voting option. Once you click on e-Voting option, 

you will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful 

authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting feature. Click on options available 

against company name or e-Voting service provider-NSDL and you will be 

redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e- 

Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. 

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User ID and Forget Password 

option available at abovementioned website. 

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues related to login through Depository 

i.e. NSDL and CDSL. 

 

Login type Helpdesk details 

Individual Shareholders holding securities 

in demat mode with NSDL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact NSDL helpdesk by 

sending a request at evoting@nsdl.co.inor call at toll free no.: 1800 1020 990 

and 1800 22 44 30 

Individual Shareholders holding securities 

in demat mode with CDSL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL helpdesk by 

sending a request at helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at 022- 

23058738 or 022-23058542-43 

 

B) Login Method for shareholders other than Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode and shareholder 

holding securities in physical mode. 

 

How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website? 
 

1. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either 

on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. 

2. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under 

‘Shareholder/Member’ section. 

3. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on the 

screen. 

Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e. IDEAS, you can log-in at https://eservices.nsdl.com/ with your 

existing IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL eservices after using your log-in credentials, click on e-Voting and you can 

proceed to Step 2 i.e. Cast your vote electronically. 

4. Your User ID details are given below: 

 

Manner of holding shares i.e. Demat (NSDL or CDSL) or 

Physical 

Your User ID is: 

a) For Members who hold shares in demat account with 

NSDL. 

8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit Client ID 

For example if your DP ID is IN300*** and Client ID is 

12****** then your user ID is IN300***12******. 

http://www.cdslindia.com/
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How to cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system? 

1. After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see all the companies “EVEN” in which you are holding 

shares and whose voting cycle and General Meeting is in active status. 

 

2. Select “EVEN” of company for which you wish to cast your vote during the remote e-Voting period and casting 

your vote during the General Meeting. For joining virtual meeting, you need to click on “VC/OAVM” link 

placed under “Join General Meeting”. 

 

3. Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens. 

 
4. Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent or dissent, verify/modify the number of shares for 

which you wish to cast your vote and click on “Submit” and also “Confirm” when prompted. 

 

5. Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed. 

 
6. You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option on the confirmation page. 

 
7. Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote. 

General Guidelines for shareholders 

 
1. Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to send scanned copy 

(PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc. with attested specimen signature of the 

duly authorized signatory(ies) who are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer by e-mail scsandcollp@gmail.com 

with a copy marked to evoting@nsdl.co.in. 

 

2. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care to keep your 

password confidential. Login to the e-voting website will be disabled upon five unsuccessful attempts to key in 

the correct password. In such an event, you will need to go through the “Forgot User Details/Password?” or 

“Physical User Reset Password?” option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com to reset the password. 

 

3. In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for Shareholders and e-voting user 

manual for Shareholders available at the download section of www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on toll free no.: 

1800 1020 990 and 1800 22 44 30 or send a request to (Name of NSDL Official) at evoting@nsdl.co.in 

b) For Members who hold shares in demat account with 

CDSL. 

16 Digit Beneficiary ID 

For example if your Beneficiary ID is 12************** then 

your user ID is 12************** 

c) For Members holding shares in Physical Form. EVEN Number followed by Folio Number registered with the 

company 
For example if folio number is 001*** and EVEN is 101456 

then user ID is 101456001*** 

 

5. Password details for shareholders other than Individual shareholders are given below: 

a) If you are already registered for e-Voting, then you can user your existing password to login and cast your vote. 

 

b) If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need to retrieve the ‘initial password’ which was 

communicated to you. Once you retrieve your ‘initial password’, you need to enter the ‘initial password’ and the 

system will force you to change your password. 

 
c) How to retrieve your ‘initial password’? 

(i) If your email ID is registered in your demat account or with the company, your ‘initial password’ is 

communicated to you on your email ID. Trace the email sent to you from NSDL from your mailbox. Open 

the email and open the attachment i.e. a .pdf file. Open the .pdf file. The password to open the.pdf file is 

your 8 digit client ID for NSDL account, last 8 digits of client ID for CDSL account or folio number for 

shares held in physical form. The .pdf file contains your ‘User ID’ and your ‘initial password’. 

(ii) If your email ID is not registered, please follow steps mentioned below in process for those shareholders 

whose email ids are not registered 

 

6. If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the “Initial password” or have forgotten your password: 

a)  Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?” (If you are holding shares in your demat account with NSDL or CDSL) 

option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com. 

b) Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding shares in physical mode) option available on 

www.evoting.nsdl.com. 

c) If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can send a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in 

mentioning your demat account number/folio number, your PAN, your name and your registered address etc. 

d) Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for casting the votes on the e-Voting system of NSDL. 

7. After entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms and Conditions” by selecting on the check box. 

8. Now, you will have to click on “Login” button. 

9. After you click on the “Login” button, Home page of e-Voting will open. 
 

Step 2: Cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system. 
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PROCESS FOR THOSE SHAREHOLDERS WHOSE EMAIL IDS ARE NOT REGISTERED WITH THE DEPOSITORIES 

FOR PROCURING USER ID AND PASSWORD AND REGISTRATION OF E MAIL IDS FOR E-VOTING FOR THE 

RESOLUTIONS SET OUT IN THIS NOTICE: 

1. In case shares are held in physical mode please provide Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned copy of the share certificate 

(front and back), PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email 

to karnavatifinance@gmail.com 

2. In case shares are held in demat mode, please provide DPID-CLID (16 digit DPID + CLID or 16 digit beneficiary ID), Name, 

client master or copy of Consolidated Account statement, PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN  card), AADHAR (self 

attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) to karnavatifinance@gmail.comIf you are an Individual shareholders holding securities in 

demat mode, you are requested to refer to the login method explained at step 1 (A) i.e.Login method for e-Voting and joining 

virtual meeting for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode. 

3. Alternatively shareholder/members may send a request to evoting@nsdl.co.infor procuring user id and password for e-voting by 

providing above mentioned documents. 

4. In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual shareholders 

holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository 

Participants. Shareholders are required to update their mobile number and email ID correctly in their demat account in order to 

access e-Voting facility. 

 
THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR e-VOTING ON THE DAY OF THE 38THAGM ARE AS UNDER:- 

1. The procedure for e-Voting on the day of the 38th AGM is same as the instructions mentioned above for remote e-voting. 

2. Only those Members/ shareholders, who will be present in the 38th AGM through VC/OAVM facility and have not casted 

their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote 

through e-Voting system in the AGM. 

3. Members who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the 38th AGM. However, they will not be 

eligible to vote at the AGM. 

4. The details of the person who may be contacted for any grievances connected with the facility for e-Voting on the day of the 

AGM shall be the same person mentioned for Remote e-voting. 

 

Shareholders who would like to express their views/have questions may send their questions in advance mentioning their name demat 

account number/folio number, email id, mobile number at karnavatifinance@gmail.comThe same will be replied by the company 

suitably. 

 

CONTACT DETAILS 

Company KARNAVATI FINANCE LIMITED 

“Vraj”, 05th Floor, Opp. Hotel President, Near Bhumi Press, Limda Lane, Jamnagar-361001, Gujarat 

Phone No.: 0288 2663042; E-Mail ID: karnavatifinance@gmail.com;   

Website: www.karnavatifinancelimited.com 

Registrar and 

Transfer 

Agent 

SATELLITE CORPORATE SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED 

Office no. 106 & 107, Dattani Plaza, East West Compound, AndheriKurla Road, Safedpul, Sakinaka, 

Mumbai-400072 
E-Mail ID: service@satellitecorporate.com; Phone No.: 022 28520461 

E-Voting 

Agency & VC 
/ OAVM 

Email: evoting@nsdl.co.in NSDL help desk 1800-222-990 

Scrutinizer M/S. KJB & CO LLP 

Mr. AlpeshKumar Panchal  (Membership No. A49008, CP NO. 20120) Partner 

Email ID: Alpesh.panchal@kjbllp; Tel No.: +91 22 35121058 

 

INSTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERS/MEMBERS TO ATTEND THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING THROUGH 

VC/OAVM: 

1. Member will be provided with a facility to attend the AGM through VC/OAVM through the NSDL e-Voting system. Members 

may access the same at https://www.evoting.nsdl.com under shareholders/members login by using the remote e-voting credentials. 

The link for VC/OAVM will be available in shareholder/members login where the EVEN of Company will be displayed. Please 

note that the members who do not have the User ID and Password for e-Voting or have forgotten the User ID and Password may 

retrieve the same by following the remote e-Voting instructions mentioned in the notice to avoid last minute rush. Further members 

can also use the OTP based login for logging into the e-Voting system of NSDL. 
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mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.infor
mailto:karnavatifinance@gmail.comThe
http://www.karnavatifinancelimited.com/
mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in
http://www.evoting.nsdl.com/


Karnavati Finance Limited                        Annual Report 2021-22 

2. Members are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops for better experience. 

3. Further Members will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good speed to avoid any disturbance during the meeting. 

4. Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop connecting via Mobile Hotspot may 

experience Audio/Video loss due to Fluctuation in their respective network. It is therefore recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or 

LAN Connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches. 

Shareholders who would like to express their views/have questions may send their questions in advance mentioning their name demat 

account number/folio number, email id, mobile number at karnavatifinance@gmail.com. The same will be replied by the company 

suitably. 

 

Registered Office                                    By order of the Board 

For, Karnavati Finance Limited 

705, Palm Spring Centre, Above Croma, Near New 
Infinity Mall, Link Road, Malad (West),  

Mumbai – 400064, Maharashtra 

Jay Ramanbhai Morzaria  

Chairman and Managing Director 

Place:  Mumbai                              DIN: 02338864 

Date: September 9,2022                

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Annexure to Notice - Explanatory Statement 

pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Secretary Standard 2 on General Meetings 
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Item No.:-3  

Approval of Material Related Party Transactions:- Ordinary Resolution  

Pursuant to the provision of Regulation 23 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“LODR”), all material related party transactions shall require the approval of the shareholders.  

Company took approval/ratification of Members for the RPT’s entered/to be entered in the 35th Sr. No. Annual General Meeting held on 

September 25, 2019 for Expected value of transaction(s) to be entered into individually or taken together with previous transactions during 

a financial year for Expected maximum value over 3 financial years starting from 2018-19.  

Accordingly, the approval of the shareholders by way of an Ordinary Resolution is sought under Regulation 23 of LODR for arrangements/ 

transactions/ contracts hitherto entered or to be enter into with Related Parties in one or more tranches. The particulars of the Related Party 

Transactions for which approval/ratification of the Members is sought, are as follows: 

Sr. 

No. 

Name of 

Related Party 

 

Nature of 

Relationship 

Type of Transaction(s) Maximum Value* of 

Transaction in every 

financial year 

 

1. Mr. Jay 

Morzaria 

Chairman and 

Managing Director 

Receipt of Unsecured 

Loan from him and 

payment of Interest 

thereon at rate not 

exceeding the Bank 

Rate or 8.00%, 

whichever is higher 

Up to Rs. 10.00 Crore 

individually or in 

aggregate and payment 

of interest thereon not 

exceeding the Bank 

Rate or 8.00%, 

whichever is higher 

2. Mr. Raman 

Morzaria 

Whole-time Director Receipt of Unsecured 

Loan from him and 

payment of Interest 

thereon at rate not 

exceeding the Bank 

Rate or 8.00%, 

whichever is higher 

Up to Rs. 10.00 Crore 

individually or in 

aggregate and payment 

of interest thereon not 

exceeding the Bank 

Rate or 8.00%, 

whichever is higher 

 

Accordingly, consent of the Members is sought by way of an Ordinary Resolution as set out in Item No. 3 of the accompanying Notice. 

This resolution enables the Board of Directors of the Company to approve related party transactions, as may be required by the Company, 

from time to time, and also ratification of existing arrangements/ transactions/ contracts entered into by the Company till the date of the 

said resolution coming into effect. 

 

Moreover, by the proposed resolution, approval of the members is also sought for the material related party arrangements/ transactions/ 

contracts for the next three financial years starting from 2018-19 with the various specified related parties. The aforesaid related party 

transactions do not fall under the purview of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013. However, the same are covered by Ind AS – 24/ 

Accounting Standard 18 and hence, the approval of the members is sought by way of Ordinary resolution under Regulation 23 of the 

Listing Regulations. All documents and papers connected with this resolution are available for inspection at the registered office of the 

Company on all working days during normal business hours of the Company. 

Accordingly the Board of Directors recommends the Resolution at Item No. 5 of the accompanying Notice for approval by the Members of 

the Company. 

 

Except Mr. Jay Morzaria, Mr. Raman Morzaria and Mr. Kush Morzaria and their relatives, none of the Promoter(s), Director(s), 

Manager(s) and Key Managerial Personnel(s) and their relative(s) is/are, in any way, concerned or interested in the said resolution, except 

to the extent of their equity shareholdings in the Company. 

 

 

 

Registered Office                                    By order of the Board 

For, Karnavati Finance Limited 

705, Palm Spring Centre, Above Croma, Near New 
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Infinity Mall, Link Road, Malad (West),  

Mumbai – 400064, Maharashtra 

Jay Ramanbhai Morzaria  

Chairman and Managing Director 

Place:  Mumbai                              DIN: 02338864 

Date: September 9,2022                

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

DETAILS OF DIRECTOR SEEKINGAPPOINTMENT/ RE-APPOINTMENT AT THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 
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Disclosure under Regulation 36 (3) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and 

Secretarial Standards-2 issued by ICSI for Item No. 2: 

 

 

Particulars / Name Mr. Jay Raman Morzaria 

Date of Birth August 14, 1989 

Qualification B.Com & L.L.B 

Experience - Expertise in specific 

functional areas - Job profile and 

suitability 

Mr. Jay Raman Morzaria aged 31 years is core promoter of our company and has 

been appointed as a Managing Director of our company with effect from July 01, 

2014 and whose term of office expired on June 30, 

2019 and was reappointment by the members of the company from July 01, 2019 

as a Chairman & Managing director for a further period of five years subject to 

retire by rotation. He is a commerce graduate and Law graduate from reputed NM 

Collage under Mumbai University. A calculated risk taker with deep technical and 

legal knowledge of the market, he started his career in real estate sector at a young 

age of 19. Mr. Jay Morzaria being a managing director of our company manages 

the day-to-day affairs of the company along with strategic planning regarding 

internal & external risk about market vulnerabilities and other risk associated to 

market. He has helped the company to bring a positive worth applauding in 

competitive market 

No. of Shares held 11,57,350 

Terms & Conditions liable to retire by rotation 

Remuneration Last Drawn - 

Remuneration sought to be paid - 

Number of Board Meetings 

attended during the Financial Year 

2021-22 

4 out of 4 Board Meeting 

Date of Original Appointment September 15, 2010 

Date of Appointment in current 

terms 

July 01, 2014 

Directorships held in other public 

companies including deemed 

public companies 

NO 

Memberships / Chairmanships of 

committees of public companies* 

NIL 

Inter-se Relationship with other 

Directors. 

Father of Mr. Raman Morzaria,, Director 

 

 

 

Registered Office             By order of the Board 

For, Karnavati Finance Limited 

705, Palm Spring Centre, Above Croma, Near New 
Infinity Mall, Link Road, Malad (West),  

Mumbai – 400064, Maharashtra 

Jay Ramanbhai Morzaria  

Chairman and Managing Director 

Place:  Mumbai                 DIN: 02338864 

Date: September 9,2022                
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DIRECTOR’S REPORT 

To, 

The Shareholders, 

 

The Directors have pleasure in presenting 38th Annual Report of your Company with the Audited Financial 

Statements of the Company for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2022. 

FINANCIAL RESULTS 

(Amount in lakhs) 

Particulars F.Y. 2021-22 F.Y. 2020-21 
Revenue From Operations 219.53 100.30 
Other operation Income 20.43 2.50 
Impairment Profit 0 19.40 
Total Revenue 239.96 122.20 
Less: Total Expenses before Depreciation, Finance Cost & Tax 203.36 95.80 
Operating Profits before Depreciation, Finance Cost & Tax 44.14 26.63 
Less: Depreciation 0.77 1.24 
          Finance cost 2.86 4.91 
Profit/(Loss) Before Tax 40.51 20.48 
Less: Current Tax 10.21 5.25 
Less: Deferred Tax Liability (Assets) (0.016) 2.87 
Profit/(Loss) after Tax 30.32 12.36 

 

YEAR AT GLANCE 

Financial Performance 

During the financial year 2021-22, The Company has earned total income of Rs. 239.96 Lakhs from business activities as compared to 

Rs.122.20 Lakhs in previous year. The total revenue of the company is increased by 96.36%.  

The total Profit before tax for the financial year 2021-22 stood at Rs. 40.51 Lakhs and the total net profit after tax for the financial year 

2021-22 stood at Rs. 30.32 Lakhs. 

The Directors of the Company are planning to expand the business of the Company in areas of providing loan against securities and 

opening of FFMC branches in various cities in the current year and thus confident of presenting the better figures in the coming years. 

 

Dividend 

To conserve resources for future prospect and growth of the Company, your Directors regret to declare Dividend for the Financial Year 

2021-22 (Previous year - Nil). 

 

Net Profit Transfer to Reserves 

 

The Company has transferred Rs.606,241 to Statutory Reserve Fund in terms of Section 45-1C of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. 

 

Change in Nature of Business 

 

During the year, your Company has not changed its business or object and continues to be in the same line of business as per main 

object of the Company. 

 

 

Share Capital 
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During the year under review, the company has not issued any shares including equity shares, shares with differential voting rights, stock 

options, sweat equity etc. The company has not bought back any equity shares during the year 2021-22. The paid up share capital of the 

company as on March 31, 2022 was Rs. 10.05 crores. 

 

Dematerialization of Shares 

The Company has entered into Tripartite Agreement with the depositories, National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central 

Depository Service (India) Limited (CDSL) for providing Demat facility to its Shareholders. For this purpose, the company has appointed 

Satellite Corporate Services Private Limited, as its registrar and Share Transfer Agent. 

 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 

Constitution of Board 

The Constitution of the Board of Directors and other disclosure of the Board of Directors are given in the Corporate Governance Report. 

 

Board Meeting 

 

Regular meetings of the Board are held at least once in quarter, inter-alia, to review the quarterly results of the Company. Additional Board 

meetings are convened, as and when required, to discuss and decide on various business policies, strategies and other businesses. The 

Board meetings are generally held at corporate office of the Company. 

 

During the year under review, Board of Directors of the Company met 4 (Four) times viz., June 28, 2021, August 12, 2021,  

November 13, 2021 and February 11, 2022 respectively. 

The details of attendance of each Director at the Board Meeting and Annual General Meeting are given in the Corporate Governance 

Report. 

 

Independent Directors 

In terms of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under and Listing Regulations, the Company has three Non-

Promoter Independent Directors. In the opinion of the Board of Directors, all three Independent Directors of the Company meet all the 

criteria mandated by Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under and Securities and Exchange Board of India 

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and they are Independent of Management. 

 

A separate meeting of Independent Directors was held on August 12, 2021 to review the performance of Non-Independent Directors and 

Board as whole and performance of Chairperson of the Company including assessment of quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of 

information between Company management and Board that is necessary for the board of directors to effectively and reasonably perform 

their duties. 

 

The terms and conditions of appointment of Independent Directors and Code for Independent Director are incorporated on the website of 

the Company at www.karnavatifinancelimited.com. 

 

The Company has received a declaration from the Independent Directors of the Company under Section 149(7) of Companies Act, 2013 

and 16(1)(b) of Listing Regulations confirming that they meet criteria of Independence as per relevant provisions of Companies Act, 2013 

for financial year 2022-23. The Board of Directors of the Company has taken on record the said declarations and confirmation as submitted 

by the Independent Directors after undertaking due assessment of the veracity of the same. In the opinion of the Board, they fulfill the 

conditions as Independent Directors and are independent of the Management. Further, all the Independent Directors have registered 

themselves with Independent Directors’ Data Bank. 

 

None of Independent Directors have resigned during the year. 

 

Information on Directors 

Change in Boards composition 

Retirement by rotation and subsequent re – appointment 

Further, during the Financial Year 2021-22, Mr. Jay Raman Morzaria (DIN: 02338864), Whole Time Director of the Company, who retires 

by rotation and were re – appointed in the Annual General Meeting held on September, 2022 

In accordance with the provisions of the Articles of Association and Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Jay Raman Morzaria a 

(DIN: 02338864) of the Company retires by rotation at the ensuing annual general meeting. He, being eligible, has offered himself for re-
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appointment as such and seeks re-appointment. The Board of Directors recommends his appointment on the Board. 

Cessation of directorship 

During the year under the review, there were no cessations. Further, the Board placed on record its appreciation for the valuable 

contribution and services rendered by them during their tenure as Director of the Company. 

The relevant details, as required under Regulation 36 (3) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 

(“SEBI Listing Regulations”) and Secretarial Standards-2 issued by ICSI, of the person seeking appointment/re-appointment as Directors 

are annexed to the Notice convening the thirty seventh annual general meeting 

Key Managerial Personnel 

In accordance with section 203 of Companies Act, 2013, the Company has already appointed Mr. Jay Morzaria as Chairman and Managing 

Director, Mr. Khush Morzaria as Chief Financial Officer, Mr. Raman Morzaria as Whole – time Director and Ms. Akansha Rai as 

Company Secretary and Compliance Officer of the Company. Further, there was no change in Key Managerial Personnel during the 

Financial Year 2021-22. 

 

Performance Evaluation 

The Board of Directors has carried out an annual evaluation of its own performance, board committees and individual directors pursuant to 

the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015 in the following manners; 

 

The performance of the board was evaluated by the board, after seeking inputs from all the directors, on the basis of the criteria such as the 

board composition and structure, effectiveness of board processes, information and functioning etc. 

The performance of the committees was evaluated by the board after seeking inputs from the committee members on the basis of the 

criteria such as the composition of committees, effectiveness of committee meetings, etc. 

The board and the nomination and remuneration committee reviewed the performance of the individual directors on the basis of the criteria 

such as the contribution of the individual director to the board and committee meetings like preparedness on the issues to be discussed, 

meaningful and constructive contribution and inputs in meetings, etc. 

In addition, the chairman was also evaluated on the key aspects of his role. 

 

Separate meeting of independent directors was held to evaluate the performance of non-independent directors,  performance of the board as 

a whole and performance of the chairman, taking into account the views of executive directors and non-executive directors. Performance 

evaluation of independent directors was done by the entire board, excluding the independent director being evaluated. 

 

Director’s Responsibility Statement 

 

Pursuant to section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the board of directors, to the best of their knowledge and ability, confirm that: 

a) In preparation of annual accounts for the year ended March 31, 2021, the applicable accounting standards have been followed 
and that no material departures have been made from the same; 

b) The Directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and estimates that are 
reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year 
and of the profit or loss of the Company for that year; 

c) The Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and 
other irregularities; 

d) The Directors had prepared the annual accounts for the year ended March 31, 2021 on going concern basis. 

e) The Directors had laid down the internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that such Internal Financial 
Controls are adequate and were operating effectively; and 

f) The Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and that such systems 
were adequate and operating effectively. 

 

 

 

 

COMMITTEES OF BOARD 

The Board of Directors, in line with the requirement of the act and Listing Regulations, has formed various committees, details of which 

are given hereunder. 
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1. Audit Committee 

2. Nomination and Remuneration Committee 

3. Stakeholder’s Grievance & Relationship Committee 

The composition of each of the above Committees, their respective role and responsibility are detailed in the Report of Corporate 

Governance annexed to this Report. 

 

Audit Committee 

The Company has formed audit committee in line with the provisions of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 18 of the 

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

As at March 31, 2022, the Audit Committee comprised Mr. Parth Chandreshbhai Maniar (Non-Executive Independent) as Chairperson and 

Mrs. Birmda Minoobhai Bilimoria (Non-Executive Independent) and Mr. Jay Ramanbhai Morzaria (Executive) as Members. Details on 

dates of meetings and attendance of Members are detailed in the Report of Corporate Governance annexed to this Report. 

Recommendations of Audit Committee, wherever/whenever given, have been accepted by the Board of Directors. 

 

Vigil Mechanism 

The Company has established a vigil mechanism and accordingly framed a Whistle Blower Policy. The policy enables the employees to 

report to the management instances of unethical behavior, actual or suspected fraud or violation of Company’s Code of Conduct. 

Further the mechanism adopted by the Company encourages the Whistle Blower to report genuine concerns or grievances and provide 

for adequate safe guards against victimization of the Whistle Blower who avails of such mechanism and also provides for direct access 

to the Chairman of the Audit Committee, in exceptional cases. The functioning of vigil mechanism is reviewed by the Audit Committee 

from time to time. None of the Whistle blowers has been denied access to the Audit Committee of the Board. The Whistle Blower 

Policy of the Company is available on the website of the Company at 

http://karnavatifinancelimited.com/docs/Policy/Whistle%20Blower%20Policy.pdf 

 

Nomination and Remuneration Policy 

 

Nomination and Remuneration Policy in the Company is designed to create a high performance culture. It enables the Company to 

attract motivated and retained manpower in competitive market, and to harmonize the aspirations of human resources consistent with 

the goals of the Company. The Company pays remuneration by way of salary, benefits, perquisites and allowances to its Executive 

Directors and Key Managerial Personnel. Annual increments are decided  by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee within the 

salary scale approved by the members and are effective from April 1, of each year. 

The Nomination and Remuneration Policy, as adopted by the Board of Directors, is placed on the website of the Company at 

http://karnavatifinancelimited.com/docs/Policy/Nomination%20_%20Remuneration%20Policy.pdf and is annexed to this Report as 

Annexure – A. 

 

Remuneration of Directors 

 

The details of remuneration/sitting fees paid during the financial year 2021-22 to Executive Directors/Directors of the Company is 

provided in Annual Return https://karnavatifinancelimited.com/investors/ and Report on Corporate Governance which are the part of this 

report. 

During the year under review, the non-executive directors of the company had no pecuniary relationship or transaction with the company. 

 

DEPOSITS 

 

The company being Non-Deposit accepting Non-Banking Finance Company has not accepted any deposits from the public. Hence, the 

directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India & the Provision of Section 73 to 76 of the Company Act, 2013 or any other relevant 

provisions of the Act and the Rules there under are not applicable. Moreover, the Company is not holding any Deposit as at the financial 

year ended on March 31, 2022. 

 

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTY 

 

All transactions to be entered by the Company with related parties will be in the ordinary course of business and on an arm’s length basis. 

The detail of transaction entered with related parties is annexed to this Report as Annexure-B. 

Further, there were no related party transactions with the Company’s Promoters, Directors, Management or their relatives, which could 

have had a potential conflict with the interests of the Company. 

http://karnavatifinancelimited.com/docs/Policy/Whistle%20Blower%20Policy.pdf
http://karnavatifinancelimited.com/docs/Policy/Nomination%20_%20Remuneration%20Policy.pdf
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Members may refer to the notes to the accounts for details of related party transactions entered as per Indian Accounting Standard – 24. 

The Board of Directors of the Company has, on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, adopted a policy to regulate transactions 

between the Company and its Related Parties, in compliance with the applicable provisions of the Companies Act 2013, the Rules 

thereunder and the SEBI LODR Regulations. 

The Policy on Materiality of and dealing with Related Party Transactions as approved by the Board is uploaded on the Company’s website 

and can be accessed at the Web-link: 

http://karnavatifinancelimited.com/docs/Policy/Related%20Party%20Transaction%20Policy.pdf 

 

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS & OUTGO 

 

A. Conservation of energy – 

i.) The steps taken or impact on conservation of energy: Company ensures that the operations are conducted in the manner 

whereby optimum utilisation and maximum possible savings of energy is achieved. 

ii.) The steps taken by the Company for utilizing alternate sources of energy: No alternate source has been adopted. 

iii.) The capital investment on energy conservation equipment: No specific investment has been made in  reduction in energy 

consumption. 

B. Technology absorption – 

i.) The effort made towards technology absorption: Not Applicable 

ii.) The benefit derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product development or import substitution: 

Not Applicable 

iii.) in case of imported technology (imported during the last three years reckoned from the beginning of the financial year) - 

a. The details of technology imported: Nil. 

b. The year of import: Not Applicable. 

c. Whether the technology has been fully absorbed: Not Applicable. 

d. If not fully absorbed, areas where absorption has not taken place, and the reasons thereof: Not Applicable. 

iv.) The expenditure incurred on Research and Development: Nil 

C. Foreign Exchange Earnings & Expenditure: 

i.) Details of Foreign Exchange Earnings: Nil 

ii.) Details of Foreign Exchange Expenditure: Nil 

iii.)  

ANNUAL RETURN 

 

The Annual Return of the Company as on 31st March,2022 is available on the website of the Company at 

https://karnavatifinancelimited.com/investors/ 

 

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS 

Details of Loans, Guarantees, Investments and Security covered under the provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 are given 

in the notes to the Financial Statement. 

 

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES 

 

The ratio of the remuneration of each whole-time director to the median of employees’ remuneration as per Section 197(12) of the 

Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is 

annexed to this Report as Annexure – C. 

The statement containing top ten employees in terms of remuneration drawn and the particulars of employees as required under Section 

197(12) of the Act read with Rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, is 

provided in a separate annexure forming part of this report. Further, the report and the accounts are being sent to members excluding this 

annexure. In terms of Section 136 of the Act, the said annexure will be available for inspection in electronic form. Any shareholder 

interested in obtaining a copy of the same may write to Company Secretary. 

 

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL SYSTEM AND THEIR ADEQUACY 

http://karnavatifinancelimited.com/docs/Policy/Related%20Party%20Transaction%20Policy.pdf
https://karnavatifinancelimited.com/investors/
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During the year under review, the company has appointed M/s. Suresh Tejwani & Co, as an Internal Auditor to look after the internal 

financial control and their adequacy. 

 

The details on Internal Financial Control and their adequacy are provided in Management Discussion and Analysis Report forming part 

of Annual Report 2021-22. 

 

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENT 

 

There are no material changes or commitments affecting the financial position of the Company during the financial year 2021-22. 

 

DISCLOSURE UNDER SEXUAL HARRASMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND 

REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013. 

To foster a positive workplace environment, free from harassment of any nature, we have institutionalized the Anti-Sexual Harassment 

Initiative (ASHI) framework, through which we address complaints of sexual harassment at the all workplaces of the Company. Our policy 

assures discretion and guarantees non-retaliation to complainants. We follow a gender-neutral approach in handling complaints of sexual 

harassment and we are compliant with the law of the land where we operate. The Company has setup an Internal Complaints Committee 

(ICC) for redressal of Complaints. 

During the financial year 2021-22, the Company has received Nil complaints on sexual harassment, out of which Nil complaints have been 

disposed of and Nil complaints remained pending as of March 31, 2022. 

 

NAMES OF THE COMPANIES WHICH HAVE BECOME OR CEASED TO BE ITS SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES OR 

ASSOCIATE COMPANIES DURING THE YEAR. 

 

There is no subsidiary, joint venture or associate company as on March 31, 2022 and hence the same is not applicable to the company. 

 

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY 

A well-defined risk management mechanism covering the risk mapping and trend analysis, risk exposure, potential impact and risk 

mitigation process is in place. The objective of the mechanism is to minimize the impact of risks identified and taking advance actions to 

mitigate it. The mechanism works on the principles of probability of occurrence and impact, if triggered. A detailed exercise is being 

carried out to identify, evaluate, monitor and manage both business and non- business risks. 

 

PREVENTION OF INSIDER TRADING 

 

The Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading with a view to regulate trading in securities by the 

Directors and designated employees of the Company and the same is hosted on the website of the company i.e. 

http://karnavatifinancelimited.com/docs/Policy/Policy%20on%20Disclosure%20of%20UPSI%20(w.e.f.%20April%201,% 

 

The Code requires pre-clearance for dealing in the Company’s shares and prohibits the purchase or sale of Company shares by the 

Directors and the designated employees while in possession of unpublished price sensitive information in relation to the Company and 

during the period when the Trading Window is closed. All the Board of Directors and designated employees have confirmed compliance 

with the Code. 

 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

 

Your Company strives to incorporate the appropriate standards for corporate governance. As stipulated in Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, Report on Corporate Governance and Certificate of the Practicing Company 

Secretary with regards to compliance with the conditions of Corporate Governance is annexed to the Board’s Report as Annexure – D. 

 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT 

 

Management Discussion and Analysis Report for the year under review, as stipulated under Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing Obligations 

and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, is presented in a separate section forming part of this Annual Report. 

 

MAINTENANCE OF COST RECORDS 

 

Since the company is not falling under prescribed class of Companies, our Company is not required to maintain cost record 

http://karnavatifinancelimited.com/docs/Policy/Policy%20on%20Disclosure%20of%20UPSI%20(w.e.f.%20April%201%2C%25
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STATUTORY AUDITORS AND THEIR REPORT 

 

In terms of provisions of section 139 of the companies act, 2013 and companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, M/s. D G M S & 

Co., Chartered Accountants (formerly known as M/s. Doshi Maru & Associates) were appointed as a statutory auditor of the company 

in 34th AGM for a period of 5 years till the conclusion of 39th AGM of the company subject to ratification of their appointment at every 

annual general meeting. However, in terms of provisions of companies Act (Amendments), 2017, the requirement for ratification of the 

auditors at every annual general meeting has been dispensed with. 

The notes on financial statement referred to in the Auditor’s Report are self-explanatory and do not call for any further comments. 

Further the Auditor’s Report does not contain any qualification, reservation or adverse remark that requires clarification or justification. 

Reporting of frauds by auditors 

During the year under review, neither the statutory auditor nor the secretarial auditor has reported to the audit committee, under section 143 

(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 any instances of fraud committed against the company by its officers or employees, the details of which 

would need to be mentioned in the Board’s Report. 

 

SECRETARIAL AUDITOR AND THEIR REPORT 

 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Act and the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 

2014, the Company has appointed M/s. Renu Bang & Associates Practicing Company Secretaries, Ahmedabad to carry out the Secretarial 

Audit for the financial year ended on March 31, 2022. Secretarial Audit Report is annexed to the Board’s Report as Annexure – E-1. 

Further, as per Regulation 24A of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and necessary amendments 

thereto, every listed entity and it’s material unlisted subsidiaries incorporated in India is required to submit Annual Secretarial Compliance 

Report to the concern stock exchange within 60 days from the closure of respective financial year regarding the status of compliances done 

by the listed entity as prescribed under SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015. 

For, compliance of Regulation 24A of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, the company has appointed M/s. Renu Bang & Associates 

Practicing Company Secretaries for the purpose of availing Annual Secretarial Compliance Report and submitted the same with BSE 

Limited and the copy of the same is annexed to the Board’s Report as Annexure – E-2. 

 

There have been few common annotations reported by the above Secretarial Auditors in their Report with respect to: 

Sr. 

No 

Compliance Requirement 

(Regulations/ circulars / 

Guidelines including specific 

clause) 

Deviations Observations/ 

Remarks of the 

Practicing Company 

Secretary 

Management Reply 

     

 

SECRETARIAL STANDARD 

The company complies with all applicable mandatory secretarial standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India. 

 

DEPOSITS 

The Company being an Non Banking Financial Company has not accepted any deposits during the year under review. 

 

GENERAL DISCLOSURE 

 

Your Directors state that the Company has made disclosures in this report for the items prescribed in section 134(3) of the Act and Rule 8 

of The Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 to the extent the transactions took place on those items during the year. 

Your Directors further state that no disclosure or reporting is required in respect of the following items as there were no transactions on 

these items during the year under review: 

1. Details of Annual Report on Corporate Social Responsibility as Company is not falling within the criteria as prescribed u/s 135 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 

2. Issue of Equity Shares with differential rights as to dividend, voting or otherwise. 

3. Issue of shares (including sweat equity shares) to employees of the Company under any scheme and ESOS. 

4. No significant or material orders were passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals which impact the going concern status and 
Company’s operations in future. 

APPRECIATIONS AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 
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Your Directors take this opportunity to place on record the valuable co-operation and support extended by the 
banks, government, business associates and the shareholders for their continued confidence reposed in the 
Company and look forward to having the same support in all future endeavors.     

 

Registered Office:    For and on behalf of Board of Directors 

705, Palm Spring Centre, Above Croma,  Karnavati Finance Limited 

Near New Infinity Mall, Link Road, 

Malad (West), Mumbai – 400 064 

 

 

 

 

Jay Ramanbhai  Morzaria     Raman Pragjibhai Morzaria 

Managing Director          Whole-Time Director 

DIN: 02338864      DIN: 00203310  

   

Place: Mumbai 

Date: September 9,2022 

 

Annexure – A 

NOMINATION & REMUNERATION POLICY 

1. Preface: 

 

Pursuant to Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules framed thereunder (as amended from time to time) (the “Act”) and 
Regulation 19 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (as 
amended from time to time) (the “SEBI Listing Regulations”), the Board of Directors of every listed company is required to constitute 
the Nomination and Remuneration Committee. 

Karnavati Finance Limited (“the Company”), in order to attract motivated and retained manpower in competitive market, to harmonize 

the aspirations of human resources consistent with the goals of the Company and in terms of the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 

and the SEBI (Listing Regulations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015 as amended from time to time, this policy on 

nomination and remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management has been formulated and recommended 

by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and approved by the Board of Directors. 

 

2. Objective: 

In order to comply with the requirements of Section 178 of the Act and Regulation 19 of the SEBI Listing Regulations and any other 

applicable provisions, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board of Directors of the Company (the “Committee”) had 

formulated this policy (the “Policy”). 

The Key Objectives of the Nomination and Remuneration Policy would be: 

A. To formulate the criteria for determining qualifications, competencies, positive attributes and independence for appointment of a 
Director (Executive / Non-Executive) and recommend to the Board of Directors of the Company (the “Board”), policies relating to 
the remuneration (payable in whatever form) of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other employees. 

B. To formulate criteria for evaluation of the members of the Board and provide necessary report to the Board for further evaluation 
of the Board. 

C. To provide to Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management reward linked directly to their effort, performance, dedication 

and achievement relating to the Company’s operations. 

D. To retain, motivate and promote talent and to ensure long term sustainability of talented managerial persons and create competitive 
advantage. 

E. To devise a Policy on Board Diversity. 

F. To develop a succession plan for the Board and to regularly review the plan. 

G. To determine whether to extend or continue the term of appointment of the Independent Director(s), on the basis of the report of 

performance evaluation of Independent Directors. 
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3. Definition: 

a) “Act” means the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules framed thereunder, as amended from time to time. 

b) “Board” means Board of Directors of the Company. 

c) “Director” means Directors of the Company. 

d) “Committee” means the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company as constituted or re-constituted by the Board. 

e) “Independent Director” means a Director referred to in Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013. 

f) “Key Managerial Personnel” means: 

i. Executive Chairman or Chief Executive Officer and/or Managing Director; 

ii. Wholetime Director; 

iii. Chief Financial Officer; 

iv. Company Secretary; 

v. such other officer, not more than one level below the directors who is in whole-time employment, designated as key managerial 
personnel by the Board; and 

vi. such other officer as may be prescribed 

g) “Senior Management” shall mean officers/personnel of the listed entity who are members of its core management team excluding 

board of directors and normally this shall comprise all members of management one level below the chief executive 

officer/managing director/whole time director/manager (including chief executive officer/manager, in case they are not part of the 

board) and shall specifically include Company Secretary and Chief Financial Officer. 

Unless the context otherwise requires, words and expressions used in this policy and not defined herein but defined in Companies Act, 
2013 as may be amended from time to time shall have the meaning respectively assigned to them therein. 

 

4. Policy on Appointment and removal of Directors, KMPs and Senior Management: 

1) Appointment criteria and qualifications: 

i. The Committee shall identify and ascertain the integrity, qualification, expertise and experience of the person for appointment as 
Director, KMP or Senior Management and recommend to the Board his / her appointment. 

ii. A person should possess adequate qualification, expertise and experience for the position he / she is considered for appointment. 
The Committee has the discretion to decide whether qualifications, expertise and experience possessed by a person is sufficient / 
satisfactory for the concerned position. 

iii. The Company shall not recommend or appoint or continue the employment of any person as the Managing Director, Whole-time 

director or Manager within the meaning of the Act, who has attained the age of 70 (seventy) years. 

Provided that the appointment of such a person who has attained the age of 70 (seventy) years shall be made with the approval of 

the Shareholders by passing a special resolution, based on the explanatory statement annexed to the notice for the Meeting of the 

Shareholders for such motion indicating the justification for appointment or extension of appointment beyond the age of 70 

(seventy) years. 

2) Tenure of Employment: 

a) Managing Director/Whole-time Director/ Executive Director: 

The Company shall appoint or re-appoint any person as its Executive Chairman, Managing Director or Executive Director for a term not 
exceeding 5 (five) years at a time. No re-appointment shall be made earlier than 1 (one) year before the expiry of term. 

b) Independent Director: 

i. An Independent Director shall hold office for a term up to 5 (five) consecutive years on the Board and will be eligible for re-

appointment on passing of a special resolution by the Company and disclosure of such appointment in the Board’s Report. 

ii. No Independent Director shall hold office for more than two consecutive terms, but such Independent Director shall be eligible for 
appointment after expiry of 3 (three) years of ceasing to become an Independent Director. Provided  that an Independent Director 
shall not, during the said period of 3 (three) years, be appointed in or be associated with the Company in any other capacity, either 
directly or indirectly. 

iii. At the time of appointment of Independent Director(s) it should be ensured that number of Boards on which such Independent 

Director serves is restricted to 7 (seven) listed companies as an Independent Director and three listed companies as an Independent 

Director in case such person is serving as a Whole-time Director of a listed company or such other number as may be prescribed 

under the Act or the SEBI Listing Regulations. 

c) Evaluation: 

The Committee shall carry out evaluation of performance of every Director, KMP and Senior Management at regular intervals (yearly). 

The evaluation of performance of the Board, its Committees and Individual Directors to be carried out either by the Board, by the 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee or by an independent external agency and review its implementation and compliance. 

The evaluation of independent directors shall be done by the entire board of directors which shall include – 

(a) performance of the directors; and 

(b) fulfillment of the independence criteria as specified in these regulations and their Independence from the management: 

Provided that in the above evaluation, the directors who are subject to evaluation shall not participate. 
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d) Removal: 

Due to reasons for any disqualification mentioned in the Act or under any other applicable law, rules and regulations, thereunder, the 

Committee may recommend, to the Board with reasons to be recorded in writing, removal of a Director, KMP or Senior Management, 

subject to the provisions and compliance of the said Act, such other applicable law, rules and regulations. 

e) Retirement: 

The Directors, KMP and Senior Management shall retire as per the applicable provisions of the Act and the prevailing policy of the 
Company. The Board will have the discretion to retain the Director, KMP, Senior Management in the same position/ remuneration or 
otherwise even after attaining the retirement age, for the benefit of the Company. 

5. Policy on remuneration of Director, KMP and Senior Management Personnel: 

i. The remuneration / compensation / commission etc. to the Whole-time Director, KMP and Senior Management will be determined 

by the Committee and recommended to the Board for approval. The remuneration / compensation / commission etc. shall be 

subject to the prior/post approval of the Shareholders of the Company and Central Government, wherever required. 

ii. The remuneration and commission to be paid to the Whole-time Director shall be in accordance with the percentage / slabs / 
conditions laid down as per the provisions of the Act. 

iii. Increments to the existing remuneration/ compensation structure may be recommended by the Committee to the Board which 
should be within the slabs approved by the Shareholders in the case of Whole-time Director or as laid down as per the provisions 

of the Act. 

1) Remuneration to Whole-time/ Executive/ Managing Director, KMP and Senior Management Personnel; 

i. The Whole-time / Executive / Managing Director / KMP and Senior Management shall be eligible for a monthly remuneration as 

may be approved by the Board on the recommendation of the Committee. The breakup of the pay scale and quantum of perquisites 

including but not limited to, employer’s contribution to Provident Fund (P.F.), Superannuation Fund, Pension Scheme, medical 

expenses, club fees, leave travel allowance, etc. shall be decided and approved by the Board/ the Person authorized by the Board on 

the recommendation of the Committee and approved by the Shareholders and Central Government, wherever required. 

ii. Minimum Remuneration: 

If, in any financial year, the Company has no profits or its profits are inadequate, the Company shall pay  remuneration to its 

Whole-time / Executive / Managing Director in accordance with the provisions of Section 197 of the Act and Schedule V to the 

Act and if it is not able to comply with such provisions, with the previous approval of the Central Government. 

iii. Provisions for excess remuneration: 

If any Whole-time / Executive / Managing Director draws or receives, directly or indirectly, by way of remuneration any such 

sums in excess of the limits prescribed under the Act or without the prior sanction of the Central Government, where required, he / 

she shall refund such sums to the Company and until such sum is refunded, hold it in trust for the Company. The Company shall 

not waive recovery of such sum refundable to it unless permitted by the Central Government. 

2) Remuneration to Non- Executive / Independent Director: 

i. Remuneration / Commission: 

The remuneration / commission shall be in accordance with the statutory provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder for the 
time being in force. 

ii. Sitting Fees: 

The Non- Executive / Independent Director may receive remuneration by way of fees for attending meetings of the Board or Committee 

thereof. Provided that the amount of such fees shall not exceed the maximum amount as provided in the Act, per meeting of the Board 

or Committee or such amount as may be prescribed by the Central Government from time to time. 

iii. Limit of Remuneration/Commission: 

Remuneration/ Commission may be paid within the monetary limit approved by shareholders, subject to the limit not exceeding 1% of 
the profits of the Company computed as per the applicable provisions of the Act. 

iv. Stock Options: 

An Independent Director shall not be entitled to any stock option of the Company. 

6. Membership: 

a) The Committee shall comprise of at least (3) Directors, all of whom shall be non-executive Directors and at least half shall be 
Independent Directors. 

b) The Board shall reconstitute the Committee as and when required to comply with the provisions of the Act and the SEBI Listing 
Regulations. 

c) The quorum for the Meeting of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall either be two members or one third of the total 
strength of the Committee, whichever is higher (including at least one independent director in attendance). 

d) Membership of the Committee shall be disclosed in the Annual Report. 

e) Term of the Committee shall be continued unless terminated by the Board of Directors. 

7. Chairperson: 

a) Chairperson of the Committee shall be an Independent Director. 

b) Chairperson of the Company may be appointed as a member of the Committee but shall not be a Chairman of the Committee. 

c) In the absence of the Chairperson, the members of the Committee present at the meeting shall choose one amongst them to act as 
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Chairperson. 

d) Chairman of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee meeting could be present at the annual general meeting or may 
nominate some other member to answer the shareholders’ queries. 

8. Frequency of Meetings: 

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall meet at least once a year. 

9. Committee Members’ interests: 

a) A member of the Committee is not entitled to be present when his or her own remuneration is discussed at a meeting or when his 
or her performance is being evaluated. 

b) The Committee may invite such executives, as it considers appropriate, to be present at the meetings of the Committee. 

10. Secretary: 

The Company Secretary of the Company shall act as Secretary of the Committee. 

11. Duties of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee: 

Duties with respect to Nomination: 

The duties of the Committee in relation to nomination matters include: 

➢ Ensuring that there is an appropriate induction in place for new Directors and members of Senior Management and reviewing its 
effectiveness; 

➢ Ensuring that on appointment to the Board, Independent Directors receive a formal letter of appointment in accordance with the 
Guidelines provided under the Act; 

➢ Identifying and recommending Directors who are to be put forward for retirement by rotation. 

➢ Determining the appropriate size, diversity and composition of the Board; 

➢ Setting a formal and transparent procedure for selecting new Directors for appointment to the Board; 

➢ Developing a succession plan for the Board and Senior Management and regularly reviewing the plan; 

➢ Evaluating the performance of the Board members and Senior Management in the context of the Company’s performance from 
business and compliance perspective; 

➢ Making recommendations to the Board concerning any matters relating to the continuation in office of any Director at any time 
including the suspension or termination of service of an Executive Director as an employee of the Company subject to the 
provision of the law and their service contract. 

➢ Delegating any of its powers to one or more of its members or the Secretary of the Committee; 

➢ Recommend any necessary changes to the Board; and 

➢ Considering any other matters, as may be requested by the Board. 

Duties with respect to Remuneration: 

The duties of the Committee in relation to remuneration matters include: 

➢ to consider and determine the remuneration policy, based on the performance and also bearing in mind that the remuneration is 
reasonable and sufficient to attract retain and motivate members of the Board and such other factors as the Committee shall deem 
appropriate all elements of the remuneration of the members of the Board. 

➢ to recommend and approve the remuneration of the Senior Management including key managerial personnel of the Company 

maintaining a balance between fixed and variable pay reflecting short and long term performance  objectives appropriate to the 

working of the Company. 

➢ to delegate any of its powers to one or more of its members or the Secretary of the Committee. 

➢ to consider any other matters as may be requested by the Board. 

12. Minutes of Committee Meeting: 

Proceedings of all Meetings must be minuted and signed by the Chairperson of the Committee at the subsequent Meeting. Minutes of 
the Committee Meetings will be tabled at the subsequent Board and Committee Meeting. 

13. Deviations from this Policy: 

Deviations on elements of this policy in extraordinary circumstances, when deemed necessary in the interests of the Company, will be 
made if there are specific reasons to do so in an individual case. 

14. Amendment: 

This updated policy shall be effective from April 1, 2019. 

Any change in the Policy shall be approved by the Board of Directors or any of its Committees (as may be authorized by the Board of 

Directors in this regard). The Board of Directors or any of its authorized Committees shall have the right to withdraw and / or amend 

any part of this Policy or the entire Policy, at any time, as it deems fit, or from time to time, and the decision of the Board or its 

Committee in this respect shall be final and binding. Any subsequent amendment / modification in the Listing Regulations and / or any 

other laws in this regard shall automatically apply to this Policy. 
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Annexure – B 

FORM NO. AOC 2 

Particulars of Contracts/arrangements made with related parties 

(Pursuant to section 134(3)(h) of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014) 

Forms for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related parties referred to in 

section 188(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s length transactions under third proviso thereto. 

A. Details of Contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis: NIL 

B. Details of Contracts or arrangements or transactions at arm’s length basis: 

 

Particulars RPT-1 RPT-2 

Name(s) of the related party and nature 

of the relationship 

Mr. Jay Morzaria, Chairman & 

Managing Director of the company 

Mr. Raman Morzaria,, Executive 

Director 

Nature of Contracts/ Arrangements/ 

Transactions 

Payment of Interest Amount Payment of Interest Amount 

Duration of the contracts/arrangements/ 

transactions 

F.Y. 2021-22 F.Y. 2021-22 

Salient terms of the Contracts or 

arrangements or transactions including 

the value, if any 

As per Ordinary Resolution passed for 

Material RPT dated September 25, 

2019 

As per Ordinary Resolution passed for 

Material RPT dated September 25, 

2019 

 During the year under review, the 

Company has paid total Interest of Rs. 

45,191/- to him. 

During the year under review, the 

Company has paid total Interest of Rs. 

942/- to him. 

Justification 

transactions 

for entering into The company is engaged in the 

business of financing, so for smooth 

functioning of operation of companies 

business, company requires more 

funding for further lending the same to 

its customers and thereby increasing 

its business activities. So, the 

company is taking loan from its 

director in normal course of business 

activities. 

The company is engaged in the 

business of financing, so for smooth 

functioning of operation of companies 

business, company requires more 

funding for further lending the same to 

its customers and thereby increasing 

its business activities. So, the 

company is taking loan from its 

director in normal course of business 

activities. 

Date of approval by the board July 30, 2020 July 30, 2020 

Amount paid as advance, if any N.A. N.A. 

Date on which the resolution was 

passed in general meeting as required 

under first proviso to section 188 

N.A. N.A. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Particulars RPT-1 RPT-2 
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Name(s) of the related party and nature 

of the relationship 

Mr. Jay Morzaria, Chairman & 

Managing Director of the company 

Mr. Raman Morzaria,, Executive 

Director,  

Nature of Contracts/ Arrangements/ 

Transactions 

Remuneration Remuneration 

Duration of the contracts/arrangements/ 

transactions 

F.Y. 2021-22 F.Y. 2021-22 

Salient terms of the Contracts or 

arrangements or transactions including 

the value, if any 

During the year under, the Company 

has paid remuneration of Rs. 

6,00,000/- 

During the year under, the Company 

has paid remuneration of Rs. 

4,50,000/-  

   

Date of approval by the board   

Amount paid as advance, if any N.A. N.A. 

Date on which the resolution was 

passed in general meeting as required 

under first proviso to section 188 

N.A. N.A. 

 

 

Particulars RPT-3 

Name(s) of the related party and nature 

of the relationship 

Mr. Raman Morzaria, Whole-Time 

Director of the company 

Nature of Contracts/ Arrangements/ 

Transactions 

Leave and License Agreement 

(Payment of Rent Amount) 

Duration of the contracts/arrangements/ 

transactions 

F.Y. 2020-21 

Salient terms of the Contracts or 

arrangements or transactions including 

the value, if any 

The agreement was entered into 

between the company and Mr. Raman 

Morzaria, owner of the property. As 

per the terms and conditions of 

agreement; the company shall pay 

monthly Rent of Rs. 3,00,000/- from 

November 01, 2017 onwards for the 

remaining period of agreement to 

Raman Morzaria. (The Board of the 

company in its board meeting held on 

November 01, 2017 approved the 

revision in rent). 

 

 

Particulars RPT-5 

Name(s) of the related party and nature of the relationship Mr. Kush Morzaria,, Chief Financial Officer of the 

company 

Nature of Contracts/ Arrangements/ Transactions Payment of Salary 

Duration of the contracts/arrangements/ transactions F.Y. 2021-22 

Salient terms of the Contracts or arrangements or transactions 

including the value, if any 

During the year under review, the company has paid total 

salary of Rs 1,50,000/- to him. 
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Date of approval by the board, if any March 01, 2018 and May 27, 2019 

Amount paid as advance, if any N.A. 

 

Registered Office:                        For and on behalf of Board of Directors 

705, Palm Spring Centre, Above Croma,                      Karnavati Finance Limited 

Near New Infinity Mall, Link Road,  

Malad (West), Mumbai – 400 064 

 

 

 

 

Jay Ramanbhai  Morzaria         Raman Pragjibhai Morzaria 

Managing Director             Whole-Time Director 

DIN: 02338864         DIN: 00203310  

   

Place: Mumbai 

Date: September 9,2022 
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Annexure C 

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES 

(Pursuant to section 197 (12) read with Rules made thereunder) 

Disclosures pertaining to remuneration and other details as required under Section 197 (12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with 

rules made there under. 

a) The ratio of remuneration of each director to the median remuneration of employees for the financial year and the 

Percentage increase in remuneration of each director, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Executive Officer, Company 

Secretary or Manager, if any, in the financial year: 

Sr. 

No. 

Name Designation Nature of Payment Ratio against 
median 
employee’s 
remuneration 

Percentage 
Increase 

1. Mr. Jay Morzaria Managing Director Remuneration 18.71 : 1.00 75% 
2. Mr. Raman Morzaria Whole-Time 

Director 
Remuneration 14.70 : 1.00 37.5% 

3. Mr. Kush Morzaria Chief Financial 
Officer 

Salary 4.45:1.00 42.86% 

4. Ms. Akanksha Rai Company Secretary Salary - - 
5. Ms. Vinita Ajaybhai 

Parekh 
Independent 
Director 

Sitting Fees - - 

6. Ms. Birmda 

Minoobhai Bilimoria 
Independent 
Director 

Sitting Fees - - 

7. Mr. Parth 

Chandreshbhai Maniar 
Independent 
Director 

Sitting Fees - - 

8. Mr. Vineshkumar Popatlal Makadia Director    

None of the Non-Executive Directors of the Company including Independent Directors were paid any kind of remuneration / sitting 

fees. 

b) The percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the financial year: The average median remuneration of 
employees was Decreased by 13.49% over previous year. 

c) The number of permanent employees on the rolls of the company : 06 Employees 

d) Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial personnel in the last 
financial year and its comparison with the percentile increase in the managerial remuneration and justification thereof and 
point out if there are any exceptional circumstances for increase in the managerial remuneration: The Average 28.66% 
decrease was made in salary of employees whereas remuneration of executive directors were increased. There was no decrease 
in the remuneration of Employees as compared to last year, however, the same has been decreased due to resignations of 
employees. 

The board of directors of the company affirmed that remuneration of the entire key managerial personnel of the company are as per the 

remuneration policy of the company. 

 

Registered Office:                         For and on behalf of Board of Directors 

705, Palm Spring Centre, Above Croma,                        Karnavati Finance Limited 

Near New Infinity Mall, Link Road, 

Malad (West), Mumbai – 400 064 

 

 

Jay Ramanbhai  Morzaria     Raman Pragjibhai Morzaria 

Managing Director          Whole-Time Director 

DIN: 02338864      DIN: 00203310  

   

Place: Mumbai 

Date: September 9,2022 
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Annexure – D 

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

Pursuant to Regulation 27 and Para-C of Schedule – V of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015; 

report contains the details regarding corporate governance system and mechanism of Karnavati Finance Limited (“the Company”). 

 

COMPANY’S POLICY ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

 

The company’s policy on corporate governance is based on transparency, accountability and adaptability and ethical corporate 

citizenship. The company remain committed to uplift and develop its stakeholders and believes that stakeholders 

i.e. shareholders, suppliers, customers, employees and society are the core and key part of the company and they contribute for 

development of the company directly or indirectly. 

The company has established and developed such policy and taken such action so that it becomes good and standard model of Corporate 

Governance. In this behalf company follows each and every Regulation of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015, Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable Laws with its letter and spirit. 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

At the helm of the Company’s Corporate Governance practice is its Board. The Board provides strategic guidance and independent 

views to the Company’s senior management while discharging its fiduciary responsibilities. The Board also provides direction and 

exercises appropriate control to ensure that the Company is managed in a manner that fulfills stakeholder’s aspirations and societal 

expectations 

Constitution of Board 

The Company has a balanced board with optimum combination of Executive and Non-Executive Directors, including independent 

Directors, which plays a crucial role in Board processes and provides independent judgment on issues of strategy and performance. As 

on date of this report, board comprises of 6 (Six) Directors out of which 2 (Two) Directors are Executive Directors, 1 (One) Director is 

Non-Executive Director and remaining 3 (Three) are Non-Executive Independent Directors. 

Independent Directors are non-executive directors as defined under Regulation 16(1)(b) of the SEBI Listing Regulations as amended 

from time to time. The maximum tenure of the Independent Directors is in compliance with the Companies Act, 2013. All Independent 

Directors have confirmed that they meet the criteria as mentioned under Regulation 16(1)(b) of the SEBI Listing Regulations as 

amended from time to time and Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013. The present strength of the Board reflects judicious mix of 

professionalism, competence and sound knowledge which enables the Board to provide effective leadership to the Company. 

None of the Directors is a Director in more than ten Public Limited Companies. Further, none of the Directors on the Company’s Board 

is a Member of more than ten Committees and Chairman of more than five Committees (Committees being, Audit Committee and 

Stakeholder’s Grievance & Relationship Committee) across all the companies in which  he/she is a Director. All the Directors have 

made necessary disclosures regarding Committee positions held by them in other companies and do not hold the office of Director in 

more than ten public companies as on March 31, 2022 / date of appointment. None of the Director of the Company is serving as a 

Whole-Time Director in any Listed Company and is holding position of Independent Director in more than three Listed Company and 

none of the Director of the Company is holding position as Independent Director in more than seven Listed Company. None of the 

Directors is Director in more than seven listed companies. 

The composition of the Board is in conformity with the Regulation 17 of the SEBI Listing Regulations. As on date of this report, the 

Board comprised following Directors; 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

    
Total 

No. of Committee^ 
No. of Shares 
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Name of 

Director 

 

Category 

Cum 

Designation 

Date of 

Appointmen

t at current 

Term 

Total 

Directorshi

p in other 

Companies

~ 

Directorsh

i p in 

other 

Listed 

Companie

s 

in which 

Director 

is    

Member 
s 

in which 

Director is    

Chairma 
n 

held as on 

March 31, 

2022 

Inter-se 

Relation 

between 

Directors 

Mr. Jay 

Ramanbhai 

Morzaria 

Promoter 

Chairman 
&Managing 

Director 

 
July 1, 2019 

 
7 

 
- 

 
2 

 
- 

 
1157350 

Son of Mr. 

Raman 

Morzaria 

Mr. Raman 

Pragjibhai 

Morzaria 

Promoter 

Whole- 
Time 

Director 

 
July 1, 2019 

 
6 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

 
2938881 

Father of Mr. 

Jay Morzaria 

 

Mr.Vineshku 

mar Popatlal 

Makadia 

Non- 

Promoter 

Non- 

Executive 
Director 

 
January 16, 

2021 

 

2 

 

- 

 

- 

 

- 

 

- 

 

No Relation 

Mrs. Birmda 

Minoobhai 

Bilimoria 

Non- 

Promoter 

Independent 
Director 

 

August 13, 

2018 

 
- 

 
- 

 
2 

 
- 

 
- 

 
No Relation 

Mr. Parth 
Chandreshbha 

Non- 
Promoter 

September 
20, 2018 

- - - 2 - No Relation 

Mrs. Vinita 
Ajay Parekh 

Director May 06, 
2020 

      

^ Committee includes Audit Committee and Shareholders’ Grievances Committee across all Public Companies including our Company. 

~ excluding Section 8 Company, Struck off Company, Amalgamated Company, LLPs and our Company. 

None of the Directors of the Company is disqualified for being appointed as Director as specified in Section 164 (2) of the Companies 

Act, 2013. A Certificate from M/s. Renu Bang, Practicing Company Secretaries as stipulated under Regulation 34 read with Schedule V 

of the SEBI LODR Regulations, is attached as an Annexure – E1 to this Report. 

Relationship between Directors inter-se 

None of the above Directors bear inter-se relation with other Director except, Mr. Raman Pragjibhai Morzaria and Mr. Jay Ramanbhai 

Morzaria who are father and son. 

Board Meeting 

Regular meetings of the Board are held at least once in a quarter, inter-alia, to review the quarterly results of the Company. Additional 

Board meetings are convened, as and when required, to discuss and decide on various business policies, strategies and other businesses. 

The Board meetings are generally held at Corporate office of the Company 

During the year under review 4(Four) Board meetings were held viz. June 28, 2021, August 12, 2021, November 13, 2021 and February 

11, 2022.The gap between two consecutive meetings was not more than one hundred and twenty days as provided in section 173 of the 

Act. 

The details of attendance of each Director at the Board Meeting and Annual General Meeting are given below; 
 

 

Name of 

Director 

Mr. Jay 

Ramanbhai 

Morzaria 

Mr. 

Raman 

Pragjibhai 

Morzaria 

Mr. 

Vineshkumar 

Popatlal 

Makadia 

Mrs. 

Birmda 

Minoobhai 

Bilimoria 

Mr. Parth 

Chandreshbhai 

Maniar 

Ms. 

Vinita 

Parekh 

Mr. 

Vineshkumar 

Popatlal 

Makadia 

No. of 

Board 

Meeting 
held 

4 4 4 4 4 4 4 

No. of 

Board 

Meeting 

eligible to 

attend 

4 4 4 4 4 4 4 

Number of 

Board 

Meeting 
attended 

4 4 4 4 4 4 4 
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Presence at 

the previous 

AGM 

Yes Yes 
Yes 

Yes Yes Yes Yes 

 

During the year under review, the Board of Directors has not passed any resolutions through circulation that are required to be reported 

under the provisions of companies act, 2013. 

 

INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS 

In terms of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under and Listing Regulations, the Company has three Non-

Promoter Non-Executive Independent Directors. In the opinion of the Board of Directors, all three Independent Directors of the 

Company meet all the criteria mandated by Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under and Listing Regulations 

and they are Independent of Management. 

A separate meeting of Independent Directors was held on August 12, 2021 to review the performance of Non-Independent Directors and 

Board as whole and performance of Chairperson of the Company including assessment of quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of 

information between Company management and Board that is necessary for the board of directors to effectively and reasonably perform 

their duties. 

The terms and conditions of appointment of Independent Directors and Code for Independent Director are incorporated on the website

 of the Company at 

http://karnavatifinancelimited.com/docs/Policy/Nomination%20_%20Remuneration%20Policy.pdf. 

The Company has received a declaration from the Independent Directors of the Company under Section 149(7) of Companies Act, 2013 

and 16(1)(b) of Listing Regulations confirming that they meet criteria of Independence as per relevant provisions of Companies Act, 

2013 for financial year 2022-23. The Board of Directors of the Company has taken on record the said declarations and confirmation as 

submitted by the Independent Directors after undertaking due assessment of the veracity of the same. In the opinion of the Board, they 

fulfill the conditions for appointment as Independent Directors and are independent of the Management. 

None of Independent Directors have resigned during the year. 

 

Training to Board Members – Familiarization Programme 

The Board is equipped to perform its role through inputs from various sources from time to time. Directors are fully briefed on all 

matters concerning the business and operation of the Company, risk assessment and minimization procedures and new initiatives 

proposed by the Company. The Board members regularly interact with the management in order to obtain any information that they 

may require. The company has adopted the Familiarization Programme which is placed  on the website

 of the company at 

http://karnavatifinancelimited.com/docs/Policy/Familiarization%20Programme%20for%20Independent%20Director.pdf 

Code of conduct for the Board of Directors and senior management personnel: 

In terms of Regulation 17(5) of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure  Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015, the Board has adopted the Code of Conduct for the Board of Directors and Senior Management Personnel of the 

Company. The compliance of the said code has been affirmed by them annually. The Code of Conduct also includes the duties of 

Independent Directors. A copy of the Code has been put up on the Company’s website and same may

 be accessed at 

http://karnavatifinancelimited.com/docs/Policy/Code%20of%20Conduct%20for%20PIT%20(w.e.f.%20April%201,%2020 19).pdf 

A declaration signed by the Managing Director of the Company is attached with this report. 

Key Board qualifications, expertise and attributes 

The KFL board comprises qualified members who bring in the required skills, competence and expertise that allow them to make 

effective contributions to the board and its committees. The board members are committed to ensuring that the KFL Board is in 

compliance with the highest standard of corporate governance. 

In the opinion of board and the board governance, Nomination and Remuneration committee, the following is a list of core 

skills/expertise/competencies required in the context of the company’s business and which are available with the board. 

 

Financial Leadership of a financial firm or management of the finance function of an enterprise, resulting in 

proficiency in complex financial management, capital allocation, and financial reporting processes, or 

experience in actively supervising a principal financial officer, principal accounting officer, controller, 

public accountant, auditor or person performing similar functions. 

Gender, ethnic, 

national, or other 

diversity 

Representation of gender, ethnic, geographic, cultural, or other perspectives that expand the Board’s 

understanding of the needs and viewpoints of our customers, partners, employees, governments, and 

other stakeholders 

http://karnavatifinancelimited.com/docs/Policy/Nomination%20_%20Remuneration%20Policy.pdf
http://karnavatifinancelimited.com/docs/Policy/Familiarization%20Programme%20for%20Independent%20Director.pdf
http://karnavatifinancelimited.com/docs/Policy/Code%20of%20Conduct%20for%20PIT%20(w.e.f.%20April%201%2C%2020
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Leadership Extended leadership experience for a significant enterprise, resulting in a practical understanding of 

organizations, processes, strategic planning, and risk management. Demonstrated strengths in 

developing talent, planning succession, and driving change and long-term growth 

Functional and 

managerial 

experience 

Knowledge and skills in accounting and finance, business judgment, general management practices 

and processes, crisis response and management, industry knowledge, macro-economic perspectives, 

human resources, labour laws, international markets, sales and marketing, and risk management. 

Personal values Personal characteristics matching the Company’s values, such as integrity, accountability, and high 

performance standards. 

Strategy and 

Planning 

Appreciation of long-term trends, strategic choices and experience in guiding and leading 

management teams to make decisions in uncertain environments. 

Corporate 

governance 

Experience in developing and implementing good corporate governance practices, maintaining board 

and management accountability, managing stakeholders’ interests and Company’s responsibilities 

towards customers, employees, suppliers, regulatory bodies and the communities in which it operates. 

In terms of the requirement of the Listing Regulations, the Board has identified the core Skills/expertise/competencies of the Directors 

in the context of the Company’s business for effective functioning and as available with the Board. These are as follows 

 
Skills/ expertise/ 

competencies 

Mr. Jay 

Ramanbhai 

Morzaria 

Mr. Raman 

Pragjibhai 

Morzaria 

Mr. 

Vineshkuma 

r Popatlal 

Makadia 

Mrs. Birmda 

Minoobhai 

Bilimoria 

Mr. Parth 

Chandreshb 

hai Maniar 

Ms. Vinita 

Ajaybhai 

Parekh 

Financial Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes 

Gender, ethnic, 

national, or other 

diversity 

 
Yes 

 
Yes 

 
Yes 

 
Yes 

 
Yes 

 
Yes 

Leadership Yes Yes - - Yes Yes 

Functional and 

managerial 

experience 

Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes 

Personal values Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes 

Strategy

 and 

Planning 

Yes Yes - Yes Yes Yes 

Corporate 

governance 

Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes 

COMMITTEES OF BOARD 

The terms of reference of Board Committees are determined by the Board from time to time. Presently the Company has 3 (Three) 

committees i.e. Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Stakeholder’s Relationship Committee. 

All the decisions pertaining to the constitution of the Committees, appointment of members, and fixing of terms of reference for 

committee members are taken by the Board of Directors. Details on the role and composition of these committees, including the number 

of meetings held during the financial year and the related attendance, are provided in detailed hereunder. 

There were no instances during the financial year 2021-22, wherein the Board had not accepted recommendations made by any 

committee of the Board. 

A. Audit Committee 

The Company has formed audit committee in line with the provisions Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 18 of 

Listing Regulations for the purpose of assisting the Board in fulfilling its overall responsibilities of monitoring financial reporting 

processes, reviewing the Company’s established systems and processes for internal  financial controls, governance and reviewing the 

Company’s statutory and internal audit activities. 

During the year, the Committee carried out its functions as per the powers and roles given under Regulation 18 read with Part C of 

Schedule II of SEBI LODR Regulations, 2015 and Companies Act, 2013. 

Role of Committee: 

1. Oversight of the Company’s financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial information to ensure that the financial 

statement is correct, sufficient and credible; 

2. Recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of auditors of the Company; 
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3. Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by the statutory auditors; 

4. Reviewing, with the management, the annual financial statements and auditor's report thereon before submission to the board for 

approval, with particular reference to: 

a) Matters required being included in the Director’s Responsibility Statement to be included in the Board’s report  in terms of 

clause (c) of sub-section 3 of section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

b) Changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same. 

c) Major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by management. 

d) Significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit findings. 

e) Compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to financial statements. 

f) Disclosure of any related party transactions. 

g) Qualifications in the draft audit report. 

5. Reviewing, with the management, the quarterly financial statements before submission to the board for approval; 

6. Reviewing, with the management, the statement of uses / application of funds raised through an issue (public issue, rights issue, 

preferential issue, etc.), the statement of funds utilised for purposes other than those stated in the offer document / prospectus / 

notice and the report submitted by the monitoring agency monitoring the utilization of proceeds of a public or rights issue, and 

making appropriate recommendations to the Board to take up steps in this matter; 

7. Review and monitor the auditor’s independence and performance, and effectiveness of audit process; 

8. Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the Company with related parties; 

9. Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments; 

10. Valuation of undertakings or assets of the Company, wherever it is necessary; 

11. Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems; 

12. Reviewing, with the management, performance of statutory and internal auditors, adequacy of the internal control systems; 

13. Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure of the internal audit department, staffing and 

seniority of the official heading the department, reporting structure coverage and frequency of internal audit; 

14. Discussion with internal auditors of any significant findings and follow up there on; 

15. Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into matters where there is suspected fraud or 

irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a material nature and reporting the matter to the board; 

16. Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope of audit as well as post- audit 

discussion to ascertain any area of concern; 

17. To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors, debenture holders, shareholders (in case of non-

payment of declared dividends) and creditors; 

18. Establish a vigil mechanism for directors and employees to report genuine concerns in such manner as may be prescribed; 

19. Approval of appointment of CFO (i.e., the Whole time Finance Director or any other person heading the finance function or 

discharging that function) after assessing the qualifications, experience and background, etc. of the candidate; 

20. Reviewing the Management letters/ letters of Internal Control weaknesses issued by Statutory Auditor; 

21. Carrying out any other function as is mentioned in the terms of reference of the Audit Committee; 

22. reviewing the utilization of loans and/ or advances from/investment by the holding company in the subsidiary exceeding rupees 

100 crore or 10% of the asset size of the subsidiary, whichever is lower including existing loans / advances / investments existing 

as on the date of coming into force of the provision and 

23. The audit committee may call for the comments of the auditors about internal control systems, the scope of audit, including the 

observations of the auditors and review of financial statement before their submission to the Board and may also discuss any 

related issues with the internal and statutory auditors and the management of the Company. 

Review of Information by the Committee: 

The Audit Committee shall mandatorily review the following information: 

1. Management discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations; 

2. Statement of significant related party transactions (as defined by the Audit Committee), submitted by management; 

3. Management letters/letters of internal control weaknesses issued by the statutory auditors; 

4. Internal audit reports relating to internal control weaknesses; 

5. The appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the internal auditor shall be subject to review by the Audit Committee and 

6. statement of deviations: 

(a) quarterly statement of deviation(s) including report of monitoring agency, if applicable, submitted to stock exchange(s) in 

terms of Regulation 32(1). 

(b) annual statement of funds utilized for purposes other than those stated in the offer document/prospectus/notice in terms of 
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Regulation 32(7). 

7. Review and monitor the auditors’ independence and performance, and effectiveness of audit process; 

8. Examination of the financial statement and auditors’ report thereon; 

9. Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the Company with related parties; 

10. Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investment; 

11. Valuation of undertakings or assets of the Company, wherever it is necessary; 

12. Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems; 

13. Monitoring the end use of funds raised through public offers and related matters; 

14. Any other matters as prescribed by law from time to time. 

Powers of Committee: 

The Committee- 

1. May call for comments of auditors about internal control system, scope of audit, including observations of auditors and review of 

financial statement before their submission to board; 

2. May discuss any related issues with internal and statutory auditors and management of the Company; 

3. To investigate into any matter in relation to above items or referred to it by Board; 

4. To obtain legal or professional advice from external sources and have full access to information contained in the records of the 

Company; 

5. To seek information from any employee; 

6. To secure attendance of outsiders with relevant expertise, if it considers necessary; 

7. Any other power as may be delegated to the Committee by way of operation of law. 

Composition of Committee, Meeting and Attendance of each Member at Meetings: 

Audit Committee meeting is generally held once in quarter for the purpose of recommending the quarterly / half yearly / yearly financial 

result and the gap between two meetings did not exceed one hundred and twenty days. Additional meeting is held for the purpose of 

reviewing the specific item included in terms of reference of the Committee. During the year under review, Audit Committee met 4 

(four) times viz. on June 28, 2021, August 12, 2021, November 13, 2021 and February 11, 2022 respectively. 

The composition of the Committee during the year and the details of meetings attended by its members are given below: 

 

 

 
Name of Members 

 

 
Category 

 
Designation 

in      

Committee 

Number of meetings during the financial year 2021-

22 

 

Held 
Eligible to 

attend 

 

Attended 

Mr. Parth Chandreshbhai 

Maniar 

Independent & 

Non-Executive 

Director 

Chairperson 4 4 4 

Mrs. Birmda Minoobhai 

Bilimoria 

Independent & 

Non-Executive 

Director 

Member 4 4 4 

Mr. Jay Ramanbhai 

Morzaria 

Executive 

Director 

Member 4 4 4 

The Company Secretary of the Company acts as a Secretary to the Committee. The Constitution of the Audit Committee is in line with 

the provisions of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Regulation 18 of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015. 

The Statutory Auditors and Internal Auditors of the Company are invited in the meeting of the Committee wherever requires. Chief 

Financial Officer of the Company is a regular invitee at the Meeting. 

Mr. Parth Chandreshbhai Maniar, the Chairman of the Committee had attended last Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 

September 29, 2021. 

Recommendations of Audit Committee have been accepted by the Board wherever/whenever given. 

B. Stakeholder’s Relationship Committee 

The Company has constituted Stakeholder’s Grievance & Relationship responsible for the Redressal of Shareholders, Debenture holders 

and other security holders grievances including non-receipt of Annual reports, non-receipt of declared dividend, 

Transfer/Transmission/Demat of Securities/Issue of Duplicate Certificates, etc. The Committee also oversees the performance of the 

Registrar & Transfer agents of the Company relating to the investors’ services and recommends measures for improvement. 



Karnavati Finance Limited                        Annual Report 2021-22 

Terms of Reference: 

1. Efficient transfer of shares; including review of cases for refusal of transfer / transmission of shares; 

2. Redressal of shareholder and investor complaints like transfer of Shares, non-receipt of balance sheet, non-receipt of declared 

dividends etc., 

3. Issue duplicate/split/consolidated share certificates; 

4. Allotment and listing of shares; 

5. Dematerialization/Rematerialization of Share 

6. Review of cases for refusal of transfer / transmission of shares and debentures; 

7. Reference to statutory and regulatory authorities regarding investor grievances and to otherwise ensure proper and timely 

attendance and redressal of investor queries and grievances; 

8. Review of measures taken for effective exercise of voting rights by the shareholder. 

9. Review of adherence to the service standards adopted by the listed entity in respect of various services being rendered by the 

Registrar & Share Transfer Agent. 

10. Review of the various measures and initiatives taken by the listed entity for reducing the quantum of unclaimed dividends and 

ensuring timely receipt of dividend warrants / Annual Reports / statutory notices by the shareholders of the company. 

11. The chairperson of Stakeholder Relationship Committee is required to be present at the AGM to answer the queries of all the 

securities holder. 

12. Such other matters as may be required by any statutory, contractual or other regulatory requirements to be attended to by such 

committee. 

The Committee isalso responsible for the Redressal of Shareholders, Debenture holders and other security holders grievances including 

non-receipt of Annual reports, non-receipt of declared dividend, Transfer/Transmission/Demat of Securities/Issue of Duplicate 

Certificates, etc. The Committee also oversees the performance of the Registrar & Transfer agents of the Company relating to the 

investors’ services and recommends measures for improvement. 

Composition of Committee, Meetings and Attendance of each Member at Meetings: 

During the year under review, Stakeholder’s Grievance & Relationship Committee met 1 (One) times viz on August 12, 2021 

respectively. 

The composition of the Committee during the year and the details of meetings attended by its members are given below: 

 
Name of Members 

 
Category 

Designation 

in      

Committee 

Number of meetings during the financial year 2021-

22 

Held 
Eligible to 

attend 
Attended 

Mr. Parth Chandreshbhai 

Maniar 

Independent 

&Non-Executive 
Director 

Chairperson 1 1 1 

Mrs. Birmda Minoobhai 

Bilimoria 

Independent & 

Non-Executive 
Director 

Member 1 1 1 

Mr. Jay Ramanbhai 
Morzaria 

Executive 
Director 

Member 1 1 1 

 

Name and Designation of Compliance Officer 

Ms. Akanksha Rai, Company Secretary of the Company is acting as the Compliance Officer. 

Complaint 
 

Number of complaints outstanding as on April 1, 2021 Nil 

Number of complaints received from the Investors from April 1, 2021 to March 31, 2022 Nil 

Number of complaints solved to the satisfaction of the Investors from April 1, 2021 to March 31, 

2022 

Nil 

Number of complaints pending as on March 31, 2022 Nil 

C. Nomination and Remuneration Committee 

The Company has formed Nomination and Remuneration committee in line with the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 

2013 and Regulation 19 of Listing Regulations. 

Terms of reference: 

1. formulation of the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a director and recommend to 
the board of directors a policy relating to, the remuneration of the directors, key managerial personnel and other employees; 

2. formulation of criteria for evaluation of performance of independent directors and the board of directors; 
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3. devising a policy on diversity of board of directors; 

4. identifying persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in senior management in accordance with 
the criteria laid down, and recommend to the board of directors their appointment and removal. 

5. whether to extend or continue the term of appointment of the independent director, on the basis of the report of performance 
evaluation of independent directors. 

6. recommend to the board, all remuneration, in whatever form, payable to senior management. 

Explanation: Senior Management means personnel who are members of the core management team excluding BOD comprising all 

members of management one level below the executive directors, including functional heads. 

7. Other terms of reference as prescribed under Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) 
Regulations, 2014. 

Composition of Committee, Meeting and Attendance of each Member at Meetings: 

Nomination and Remuneration Committee meeting is generally held at least once in a year. Additional meetings are held for the 

purpose of recommending appointment/re-appointment of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their remuneration. During the 

year under review, Nomination and Remuneration Committee met One (1) time viz. on February 11, 2022. 

The composition of the Committee during the year and the details of meetings attended by its members are given below: 
 

 
Name of Members 

 
Category 

Designation 

in      

Committee 

Number of meetings during the financial year 2021-

22 

Held 
Eligible to 

attend 
Attended 

Mr. Parth Chandreshbhai 

Maniar 

Independent & 

Non-Executive 
Director 

Chairperson 1 1 1 

Mrs. Birmda Minoobhai 

Bilimoria 

Independent & 

Non-Executive 

Director 

Member 1 1 1 

Ms. Vinita Ajaybhai 

Parekh 

Independent & 
Non-Executive 

Director 

Member 1 1 1 

 

Performance Evaluation: 

Criteria on which the performance of the Independent Directors shall be evaluated are placed on the website of the Company and

 may be accesses at link 

http://karnavatifinancelimited.com/docs/Policy/Performance%20Evaluation%20Policy.pdf 

The Directors were satisfied with the evaluation results, which reflected the overall engagement of the Board and its Committees with 

the Company. 

Remuneration of Directors: 

The Company has not entered into any pecuniary relationship or transactions with Non-Executive Directors of the Company. 

Further, criteria for making payment, if any, to non-executive directors are provided under the Nomination and Remuneration Policy of 

the Company which is hosted on the website of the Company viz; 

http://karnavatifinancelimited.com/docs/Policy/Nomination%20_%20Remuneration%20Policy.pdf 

During the year under review, the Company has paid remuneration to Executive Directors of the Company, details of which are as 

under; 

Sr. 
No. 

Name of 

Directors 
Designation 

Component 

of payment 

Remuneration 

paid (Rs.) 
Tenure 

1. Jay R. Morzaria Chairman & 

Managing Director 

Remuneration 3,53,500/- 5 years - Appointed as a chairman  

& Managing Director w.e.f. July 1, 

2019 for a period of 5 years the 

same was approved by the members 

of the company in their meeting 
held on September 25, 2019 

2. Raman P. 

Morzaria 

Whole-Time 

Director 

Remuneration _ 4,50,000/- 5 years - Appointed as Whole-Time 

Director w.e.f. July 1, 2019 for a 

period of 5 years the same was 

approved by the members of the 

company in their meeting held on 
September 25, 2019 

The remuneration of the Directors is decided by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee based on the performance of the 

http://karnavatifinancelimited.com/docs/Policy/Performance%20Evaluation%20Policy.pdf
http://karnavatifinancelimited.com/docs/Policy/Nomination%20_%20Remuneration%20Policy.pdf
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Company in accordance with the Nomination and Remuneration Policy within the limit approved by the Board or Members. 

Apart from sitting fees, Non-Executive Directors do not receive any other consideration except in their professional capacity. Further, 

no sitting fees was paid to the Non-Executive Directors for attending Board/Committee Meetings.  Sitting Fees paid to Directors does 

not require the approval of Shareholders and Central Government. 

During the year under review, no non-executive directors was paid any Sitting Fees. 

GENERAL BODY MEETINGS 

Annual General Meetings 

Financial 

Year 
Date Location of Meeting No. of Special Resolutions passed 

2020-21 September 

29 2021 
(Wednesday) 

At   12.00 

Noon 

Through Video conferencing -- 

2019-20 September 

29 2020 
(Tuesday) 

At 03:30 

P.M. 

Registered office of the company: 

705, Palm Spring Centre, Above Croma, 

Near New Infinity Mall, Link Road, Malad 

(West), Mumbai – 400064, Maharashtra. 

1. To appoint Ms. Vinita Ajaybhai Parekh 

(DIN: 08739757) as Non-executive 

Independent Director on the board of the 

Company: 

2. To appoint Mr. Kashyap Bharatkumar Vyas 

(DIN: 08747756) as Non-executive Director 

on the board of the Company: 

3. To appoint Mr. Vineshkumar Popatlal 

Makadia (DIN: 00362318) as Non-executive 

Director on the board of the Company: 

4. To increase the Borrowing Powers under 

Section 180(1) (c) of the Companies Act, 

2013. 

5. Restructuring of loans and extension in loan 

tenure on request of the customers. 

2018-19 September 

25, 2019 

(Wednesday) 

at 10.00 
A.M. 

Registered office of the company: 

705, Palm Spring Centre, Above Croma, 

Near New Infinity Mall, Link Road, Malad 

(West), Mumbai – 400064, Maharashtra. 

1. Re-appointment of Mr. Raman Morzaria 

(DIN: 00203310) as a whole-time director of 

the company 
2. Re-appointment of Mr. Jay Morzaria (DIN: 
02338864) as a chairman & managing director 

of the company 

Passing of Special Resolution through Postal Ballot 

The Company has not passed/proposed any Special Resolutions through Postal Ballot during the year under reference. Further, no special 

resolution is proposed to be conducted through postal ballot. 

MEANS OF COMMUNICATION 

a. Financial results 

The quarterly, half-yearly and annual results are published in widely circulating national and local dailies such as “The Financial Express” 

in English and “Lakshadweep” in Marathi language and are displayed on the website of the Company www.karnavatifinancelimited.com. 

 

b. Website 

The Company’s website www.karnavatifinancelimited.com contains a separate dedicated section namely “Investors” where shareholders 

information is available. The Annual Report of the Company is also available on the website of the Company 

www.karnavatifinancelimited.comin a downloadable form. 

During the year under review, the Company has not made any presentations to institutional investors or to the analysts. Further, the result 

of the Company has not been displayed on any official news releases. 

 

General Shareholders Information 

Date, Time and Venue of 38th Annual General Meeting Day and Date: Friday, September 30, 2022 

Time: 12.30 pm 

http://www.karnavatifinancelimited.com/
http://www.karnavatifinancelimited.com/
http://www.karnavatifinancelimited.comin/
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Mode of AGM: Video Conferencing (VC) or other Audio Visual Means (OVAM) 

Financial Year 

12 months period starting from April 1 and ends on March 31 of subsequent year. This being financial year 2021-22 was started on 

April 1, 2021 and ended on March 31, 2022. 

Financial Calendar 

(Tentative and subject to change for the financial year 2022-23) 

Quarter ending Release of Results 

June 30, 2022 August 12, 2022 

September 30, 2022 On or Before November 14, 2022 

December 31, 2022 On or Before February 14, 2022 

March 31, 2023 On or Before May 31, 2023 

Annual General Meeting for the year ending March 31, 

2022 

September 27,2022 

 

    Dividend Payment Date 

To conserve the resources for future prospect and growth of the company, your Directors regret to declare Dividend for the Financial 

Year 2021-22 (Previous year - Nil). 

Book closure date 

The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company will be closed from Thursday, September 22, 2022 for the 

purpose of Thirty Eighth AGM and same will be re-opened from Saturday, October 1st, 2022 onwards 

 

Listing on Stock Exchanges 

BSE Limited, 25th Floor, P J Towers, Dalal Street, Fort,Mumbai – 400 001. 

 

Listing fees for the financial year 2021-22 has been paid to BSE Limited. 

 

Stock Code/Symbol 

BSE Limited (Scrip Code – 538928; Scrip ID – KARNAVATI) 
 

Market Price Data 

The monthly high/low and the volumes of the company’s shares Traded on stock exchange and the monthly high/low of the said 

exchanges are as follows: 

 
Month 

Karnavati Finance Limited S & P BSE SENSEX 

High Price Low Price 
No. of 

Shares 
High Price Low Price 

April, 2021 31.78 27.05 405 33887.25 27500.8 

May, 2021 27.01 17.2 45263 32845.48 29968.45 

June, 2021 17.5 14.8 14962 35705.56 32348.13 

July, 2021 18.5 16.5 12991 38617.05 34895.15 

August, 2021 19.8 17.5 83220 40010.52 32348.10 

September, 2021 17.45 17.45 879 39382.51 349125.5 

October, 2021 17.8 17.45 108572 41048.05 34927.20 

November, 2021 15.10 15.13 17035 44825.70 39334.02 

December, 2020 18.77 11.50 28721 47805.28 36911.05 

January, 2021 21.9 13 35268 52512.76 46160.14 

February, 2021 20.16 14.25 688910 51821.85 48433.25 

March, 2021 19.7 15.5 13673 52516.76 4118.25 

 

Registrar and Transfer Agents 

Satellite Corporate Services Private Limited 

Office no. 106 & 107, Dattani Plaza, East West Compound, Andheri Kurla Road, Safedpul,Sakinaka, Mumbai-400072, Maharashtra. 

E-Mail ID:service@satellitecorporate.com; Contact No. : 022 28520461/462 

Share Transfer System 

Transfers in physical form are lodged with the Company/Transfer Agent. The Transfer Agent has complete computerized facility for 

processing the transfer. After verification of the transfers lodged in physical form, the transfer agent prepares a statement of transfer(s) 



Karnavati Finance Limited                        Annual Report 2021-22 

and accordingly approves the transfer(s). The share certificate(s) duly transferred are sent by the transfer agent to the transferee, which 

completes the transaction. In case of any complaint from shareholder(s) for delay in transfer, the matter is actively followed up by the 

Company with the transfer agent and the same is resolved to the satisfaction of the shareholder(s). 

Distribution of Shareholding (As on March 31, 2022) 

On the basis of number of shares held: 

 
No. of Shares 

No. of Shareholders No. of Shares 
% of 

Total 

Number % of Total TOTAL SHARES Amount(Rs.)  

Up to 5000 505 76.63 16049 160490 0.96 

5001 10000 27 4.1 25562 255620 0.25 

10001 20000 17 2.58 26373 263730 0.26 

20001 30000 9 1.37 23651 236510 0.24 

30001 40000 7 1.06 24178 241780 0.24 

40001 50000 8 1.21 39020 390200 0.39 

50001 100000 36 5.46 342314 3423140 3.41 

100001 and Above 50 7.59 9552853 95528530 95.05 

Total 659 100 10050000 100500000 100 

 

On the Category of Shareholders: 

No. of Shares 
Shareholders Number of Shares held 

Number % of Total Number % of Total 

Resident Individuals 601 27.2 2733070 27.2 

Corporate Promoter Under Same Management - - - - 

Bodies Corporate 6 7.77 780884 7.77 

Promoter 4 58.40 5869081 58.40 

Promoter Relatives 1 0.24 23900 0.24 

LLP 1 3.73 375128 3.73 

N.R.I. (Non-Repat) 1 0.01 1000 0.01 

Hindu Undivided Family 42 2.66 266937 2.66 

Total 656 100 10050000 100 

Dematerialization of shares and Liquidity (as on March 31, 2022) 

Mode No. of Shares Percentage 

Demat   

NSDL 1201385 11.95% 

CDSL 8548215 85.06% 

Physical 300400 2.99% 

The shares are almost actively traded on BSE Limited. For those shareholders who hold the shares in physical form may contact 

Depository Participant. 

Outstanding GDRs/ADRs/Warrants or any Convertible instruments conversion date and likely impact on equity 

The company has not issued any GDRs/ADRS/Warrants or any Convertible instruments till date. Hence, there are no outstanding 

GDRs/ADRs/Warrants or any convertible instruments. 

Plant Location 

The company, being engaged in service sector business, does not have any plant or factory. 

Address for Correspondence 

All enquiries, clarifications and correspondence should be addressed to the Compliance Officer at the following address: Ms. Akansha 

Rai (Company Secretary & Compliance Officer) 

Karnavati Finance Limited 

Corporate Office: “Vraj”, 5th Floor, Opp. Hotel President, Near Bhumi Press, Limda Lane, Jamnagar-361001, Gujarat. 

Contact No. 0288 2663042 E-Mail ID:karnavatifinance@gmail.com 

For transfer/dematerialization of shares, change of address of members and other queries: Satellite Corporate Services Private 

Limited 

Office no. 106 & 107, Dattani Plaza, East West Compound, Andheri Kurla Road, Safedpul, Sakinaka, Mumbai-400072, Maharashtra. 

mailto:karnavatifinance@gmail.com
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Sakinaka, Mumbai-400072 

E-Mail ID:service@satellitecorporate.com ; Contact No. : 022 28520461/462 

CREDIT RATINGS AND ANY REVISION THERETO: 

The Company has not issued any debt instruments and does not have any fixed deposit programme or any scheme or proposal involving 

mobilization of funds in India or abroad during the financial year ended March 31, 2022. The Company has not obtained any credit 

rating during the year. 

DISCLOSURE 

Subsidiary Companies 

The Company does not have any subsidiary companies 

Material Related Party Transactions 

During the year 2021-22, there was one transactions which was materially significant related party transaction which do not have any 

potential conflict with the interests of the Company at large for which necessary approval of the Members has been obtained. All 

transactions entered into with Related Parties during the financial year were in the ordinary course of business and on an arm’s length 

pricing basis and do not attract the provisions of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

During the year 2020-21, there was no materially significant related party transaction that may have potential conflict with the interests 

of the Company at large. Attention of members is drawn to the disclosure of transactions with the related parties set out in Notes to 

Accounts - Note No. 27, forming part of the Annual Report. 

The Board has approved a policy for related party transactions which has been uploaded on the Company’s website. The policy is 

uploaded on the website of the Company 

http://karnavatifinancelimited.com/docs/Policy/Related%20Party%20Transaction%20Policy.pdf 

Further as per Regulation 23(9) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018 (Amendment), the listed 

entity shall submit within 30 days from the date of publication of its standalone and consolidated financial results for the half year, 

disclosure of related party transactions on a consolidated basis, in the format specified in the relevant accounting standards for annual 

results to the stock exchange and publish the same on its website.The company has duly submitted the details of Related Party 

Transactions for the year ended on March 31, 2021. 

 

Compliances 

There were neither any instances of non-compliance by the Company nor there were any penalties or strictures imposed on the 

Company by the Stock Exchange/(s) or SEBI or any statutory authority, on any matter related to Capital Markets, during the last three 

years. 

 

 

 

Risk Management 

Business risk evaluation and management is an ongoing process within the Company. During the year under review, the Management 

reviewed the risk management and minimization procedure adopted by the Company covering the business operations of the Company. 

Proceeds from public issues, rights issues, preferential issues etc. 

During the year under review, the Company has not raised any proceeds from public issue, right issue, preferential issues, etc. 

 

CEO/ CFO Certification 

In terms of Regulation 17(8) read with part B of Schedule II of SEBI LODR Regulations, the Certification by CFO has been obtained 

and the said certification has been placed before the Board Members of the Company for perusal. 

 

Accounting treatment 

In the preparation of the financial statements, the Company has followed the Accounting Standards referred to in Section 133 of the 

Companies Act, 2013. The significant accounting policies which are consistently applied are set out in the Notes to the Financial 

Statements. 

 

Whistle Blower 

The Company has established a vigil mechanism for directors and employees to report concerns about unethical behaviour, actual or 

suspected fraud or violation of the Company’s Code of Conduct or ethicpolicy. The said  mechanism also provides for adequate 

safeguards against victimization of director(s)/Employee(s) who avail of the mechanism and also provide for direct access to the 

Chairman of the Audit Committee in exceptional cases. The details of establishment of such mechanism have been disclosed in the 

Board’s Report. Further, the Policy on Vigil Mechanism is available on the website of the Company at 

mailto:service@satellitecorporate.com
http://karnavatifinancelimited.com/docs/Policy/Related%20Party%20Transaction%20Policy.pdf
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http://karnavatifinancelimited.com/docs/Policy/Whistle%20Blower%20Policy.pdf 

Details of Compliance with mandatory requirements and adoption of non-mandatory requirements 

The Company has complied with the applicable mandatory requirements as specified under Regulation 15 of SEBI LODR Regulations. 

The Company has not adopted any non-mandatory requirements. 

Total fees paid to Statutory Auditors of the Company 

Total fees of Rs. 2,28,200/- (Rupees Two Lakhs Twenty-Eight Thousand Two Hundred only) plus GST for financial year 2021- 22, for 

all services, was paid by the Company to the statutory auditor and all entities in the network firm/network entity of which the statutory 

auditor is a part 

Disclosure relating to Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 

The Company has in place an effective mechanism for dealing with complaints relating to sexual harassment at workplace. The details 

relating to the number of complaints received and disposed of during the financial year 2021-22 are prescribed under Board’s Report 

forming part of this Annual Report. 

Annual Secretarial Compliance Report 

SEBI vide its Circular No. CIR/CFD/CMD1/27/2019 dated 8th February, 2019 read with Regulation 24(A) of the Listing Regulations, 

directed listed entities to conduct Annual Secretarial compliance audit from a Practicing Company Secretary of all applicable SEBI 

Regulations and circulars/guidelines issued thereunder. The said annual Secretarial Compliance report is in addition to the Secretarial 

Audit Report by Practicing Company Secretaries under Form MR – 3 and is required to be submitted to Stock Exchanges within 60 

days of the end of the financial year. 

Accordingly, the Company has availed the services of M/s Renu Bang & Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries for providing this 

certification. The Company is publishing the said annual Secretarial Compliance Report, on voluntary basis and the same has been 

annexed as Annexure – F-2 to the Board’s Report forming part of this Annual Report. 

Compliance with corporate governance requirements specified in regulation 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of sub- regulation (2) 

of Regulation 46 of Listing Regulations 

Sr. No. Particulars 
Regulation 

Number 

Compliance status 

(Yes/No/NA) 

1 Independent director(s) have been appointed in terms of specified 
criteria of ‘independence’ and/or ‘eligibility’ 

16(1)(b) & 
25(6) 

Yes 

2 Board composition 17(1), 17(1A) & 
17(1B) 

Yes 

3 Meeting of Board of directors 17(2) Yes 

4 Quorum of Board Meeting 17(2A) Yes 

5 Review of Compliance Reports 17(3) Yes 

6 Plans for orderly succession for appointments 17(4) Yes 

7 Code of Conduct 17(5) Yes 

8 Fees/compensation 17(6) NA 

9 Minimum Information 17(7) Yes 

10 Compliance Certificate 17(8) Yes 

11 Risk Assessment & Management 17(9) Yes 

12 Performance Evaluation of Independent Directors 17(10) Yes 

13 Recommendations of Board 17(11) Yes 

14 Maximum number of Directorship 17A Yes 

15 Composition of Audit Committee 18(1) Yes 

16 Meeting of Audit Committee 18(2) Yes 

17 Composition of nomination & remuneration committee 19(1) & (2) Yes 

18 Quorum of Nomination and Remuneration committee meeting 19(2A) Yes 

19 Meeting of Nomination and Remuneration Committee 19(3A) Yes 

20 Composition of Stakeholder Relationship Committee 20(1), 20(2)& 
20(2A) 

Yes 

21 Meeting of Stakeholder Relationship Committee 20(3A) Yes 

22 Composition and role of risk management committee 21(1),(2),(3),(4) NA 

23 Meeting of Risk Management Committee 21(3A) NA 

24 Vigil Mechanism 22 Yes 

25 Policy for related party Transaction 23(1) 

(1A),(5),(6),(7) 

& (8) 

Yes 

26 Prior or Omnibus approval of Audit Committee for all related party 
transactions 

23(2), (3) Yes 

http://karnavatifinancelimited.com/docs/Policy/Whistle%20Blower%20Policy.pdf
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27 Approval for material related party transactions 23(4) Yes 

28 Disclosure of related party transactions on consolidated basis 23(9) Yes 

29 Composition of Board of Directors of unlisted material Subsidiary 24(1) NA 

30 Other Corporate Governance requirements with respect to subsidiary 

of listed entity 

24(2),(3),(4),(5) 
& (6) 

NA 

31 Annual Secretarial Compliance Report 24A Yes 

32 Alternate Director to Independent Director 25(1) NA 

33 Maximum Tenure 25(2) Yes 

34 Meeting of independent directors 25(3) & (4) Yes 

35 Familiarization of independent directors 25(7) Yes 

36 Declaration from Independent Directors 25(8) & (9) Yes 

37 D & O Insurance for Independent Directors 25(10) NA 

38 Memberships in Committees 26(1) Yes 

39 Affirmation with compliance to code of conduct from members of 
Board of Directors and Senior management personnel 

26(3) Yes 

40 Disclosure of Shareholding by Non-Executive Directors 26(4) Yes 

41 Policy with respect to Obligations of directors and senior 
management 

26(2) & 26(5) Yes 

 

. Compliance Certificate of the Auditors 

A Certificate from the Secretarial Auditors of the Company M/s. Renu Bang & Associates, Practicing Company Secretary, Ahmedabad 

confirming the compliance with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated under Clause E of Schedule V of the SEBI LODR 

Regulations is attached as an Annexure – D-2 to this Report 

 

Registered Office       For and on behalf of Board of Directors 

     705, Palm Spring Centre, Above Croma,          Karnavati Finance Limited 

Near New Infinity Mall, Link Road,  

Malad (West), Mumbai – 400064,  

Maharashtra. 

 

Place:Mumbai 

Date: September 9,2022    

        Jay Ramanbhai Morzaria  

Managing Director  

DIN: 02338864 

 

DECLARATION 

I, Jay Ramanbhai Morzaria, Chairman &Managing Director of Karnavati Finance Limited hereby declare that as of March 31, 2022, all 

the Board Members and Senior Management Personnel have affirmed compliance with the Code of Conduct and Ethics for Directors 

and Senior Management Personnel laid down by the Company. 

 

Registered Office       For and on behalf of Board of Directors 

    705, Palm Spring Centre, Above Croma,                                                       Karnavati Finance Limited  
   
     Near New Infinity Mall, Link Road,  

     Malad (West), Mumbai – 400064,  

Maharashtra. 

Place:Mumbai 

Date: September 9,2022   

             Jay Ramanbhai Morzaria  

     Managing Director  

     DIN: 02338864 

 

Annexure –D 1 
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CERTIFICATE OF NON -DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS 

(Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and clause 10(i) of Part C of Schedule V of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015) 

To, 

The Members of 

KARNAVATI FINANCE LIMITED 

705, Palm Spring Centre, Above Croma, 

Nr. New Infinity Mall, Link Road, Malad (West), Mumbai - 400064. 

 

We have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from all the Directors of Karnavati Finance 

Limited (CIN: L65910MH1984PLC034724) having registered office at 705, Palm Spring Centre, Above Croma, Nr. New Infinity Mall, 

Link Road, Malad (West), 

Mumbai - 400064 (hereinafter referred to as ‘the Company’), produced before us by the Company for the purpose of issuing this 

Certificate, in accordance with the Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para-C Sub clause 10(i) of the Securities Exchange Board of 

India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the verifications (including Directors Identification Number (DIN) 

status at the portal www.mca. gov.in) as considered necessary and explanations furnished to us by the Company and the respective 

Directors, we hereby certify that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company as stated below for the Financial Year ended on 

March 31, 2021 have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Director of Company by the Securities and 

Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs, or any such other Statutory Authority. 

 

SN 

 

Name of Directors 

 

DIN 

 
Date of Appointment in the 

Company 

1 Mr. Jay Ramanbhai Morzaria 02338864 15/09/2010 

2 Mr. Raman Pragjibhai Morzaria 00203310 29/09/2001 

3 Mr. Parth Chandreshbhai Maniar 07980886 20/09/2018 

4 Ms. Birmda Minoobhai Bilimoria 08196034 13/08/2018 

5 Ms. Vineshkumar Popatlal Makadia 00362318 16/01/2021 

6 Ms. Vinita Ajaybhai Parekh 08739757 06/05/2020 

Ensuring the eligibility for the appointment / continuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility of the management of the 

Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these based on our verification. This certificate is neither an assurance as to the 

future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the 

Company. 

 

For, RENU BANG & ASSOCIATES, 

Practicing Company Secretary  

 

 

 

_____________ 

FCS No.: F10052 

C P No.: 12913 

UDIN:  

Date:  

Place:  

 

 

 

 

Annexure D-2 
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CERTIFICATE ON COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REQUIREMNTS UNDER THE SEBI 

(LISTING OBLIGATION AND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2015. 

To, 

The Members of 

KARNAVATI FINANCE LIMITED 

705, Palm Spring Centre, Above Croma, 

Nr. New Infinity Mall, Link Road, Malad (West), 

Mumbai – 400064 

 

We have examined all the records of Karnavati Finance Limited (KFL) (CIN L65910MH1984PLC034724) for the purpose of certifying 

the compliance of the disclosure requirements and conditions of Corporate Governance by KFL, for the year ended on March 31, 2022, as 

stipulated under Regulations 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of sub regulation 2 of Regulation 46 and Para C, D and E of Schedule V of the 

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended (“SEBI Listing 

Regulations”). We have obtained all the information and explanations to the best of our knowledge and belief, which were necessary for 

the purpose of this certification. 

 

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Management of the Company. Our examination was 

limited to the review of procedures and implementation thereof, as adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance of the conditions 

of the Corporate Governance stipulated in SEBI Listing Regulations. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial 

statements of the Company.  

 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to our examination of the relevant records and the explanations given to us, 

and the representations made by the Directors and the management, we certify that the Company has complied with the conditions of 

Corporate Governance as stipulated in the SEBI Listing Regulations for the year ended on March 31, 2022. 

 

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness 

with which the Management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 

 

For, RENU BANG & ASSOCIATES, 

Practicing Company Secretary  

 

 

 

_____________ 

FCS No.: F10052 

C P No.: 12913 

UDIN:  

Date:  

Place:  
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Annexure – E-1 - SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

 

Form No. MR-3 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

For the Financial Year Ended 31st March 2022.  

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No. 9 of the Companies  

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]  

 

To,  

The Members,  

Karnavati Finance Limited 

Mumbai. 

 

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliances of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good corporate 

governance practice by Karnavati Finance Limited (“the Company”). The Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us 

a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts / statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon. 

  

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the 

company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of 

secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31st 

March 2022, complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and 

compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter: 

 

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the Company for the financial 

year ended on 31st March 2022, according to the provisions of: 

i. The Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and the rules made thereunder;  

ii. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder; Not applicable to the Company for the 

year under review; 

iii. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder; 

iv. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent applicable during the period 

under review of Overseas Direct Investment; External Commercial Borrowings (Regulations relating to Foreign Direct Investment not 

attracted to the Company for the year under review); Not applicable to the Company for the year under review; 

v. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (“SEBI Act”):  

a. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008 - Not applicable to the 

Company for the year under review; 

b. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 

c. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 

d. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011- Not 

applicable to the Company for the year under review; 

e. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018 – Not applicable 

to the Company for the year under review; 

f. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009 – Not applicable to the Company 

for the year under review; 

g. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018 – Not applicable to the Company for 

the year under review; 

h. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993, regarding the 

Companies Act and dealing with client 

i. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014 – Not applicable to the 

Company for the year under review; 

Further, the company being Non-Deposit accepting Non-Banking Financial Company, following are few specific applicable acts, 

regulations, guidelines and direction to the company. 

i. Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 with regard to Non-Banking Finance Company (NBFC) ; 

ii. Master Direction - Know Your Customer (KYC) Direction, 2016; 

iii. KYC & PML Policy on securities formulated in terms of prevention of Money Laundering Act, 2002; 

iv. Prevention of Money Laundering Act, 2002; 

v. Guidelines on Fair Practice Code for NBFCs; 

vi. Master Circular - Fair Practices Code; 
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vii. Master Direction - Money Changing Activities; and 

viii. Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial Company – Non-Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking Company (Reserve 

Bank) Directions, 2016. 

ix. All guidelines, circulars and notifications issued by the Reserve Bank of India for Nonbanking Financial Companies as 

applicable. 

 

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the Secretarial Standards with respect to meeting of Board of Directors 

(SS-1) and General Meetings (SS-2) issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India under the provisions of Companies Act, 2013. 

 

During the year under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards etc. 

mentioned above to the extent applicable. 

 

We further report that: 

1. The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors, 

Independent Directors and Woman Director. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors, if any, that took place 

during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act. 

2. Adequate notice of at least seven days was given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings and Meetings of Committees. 

Agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent in advance in adequate time before the meetings and a system exists for Directors 

for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful 

participation at the meeting.  

3. On verification of minutes, we have not found any dissent/disagreement on any of the agenda items discussed in the Board and 

Committee meetings from any of the Directors and all the decisions are carried through. 

 

Based on the information received and records maintained, we further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company 

commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and 

guidelines. 

 

For, RENU BANG & ASSOCIATES, 

Practicing Company Secretary  

 

 

 

_____________ 

FCS No.: F10052 

C P No.: 12913 

UDIN:  

Date:  

Place:  

 

This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure A and forms an integral part of this report. 
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ANNEXURE A 

 

To,  

The Members,  

Karnavati Finance Limited 

Mumbai. 

 

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter. 

 

1. Maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an 

opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit. 

 

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the correctness of the 

contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial 

records. We believe that the processes and practices we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

 

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the Company. 

 

4. Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws, rules and regulations and 

happening of events etc. 

 

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the responsibility of 

management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedure on test basis. 

 

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness 

with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 

 

For, RENU BANG & ASSOCIATES, 

Practicing Company Secretary  

 

 

 

_____________ 

FCS No.: F10052 

C P No.: 12913 

UDIN:  

Date:  

Place:  
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Annexure – E-2 - SECRETARIAL COMPLIANCE REPORT OF KARNAVATI FINANCE LIMITED 

Secretarial Compliance Report of  

Karnavati Finance Limited 

for the year ended 31st March 2022 

 

I, Renu Brijlal Bang, Practising Company Secretary(ies), have examined:  

(a) all the documents and records made available to us and explanation provided by Karnavati Finance Limited (“the listed 

entity”),  

(b) the filings/ submissions made by the listed entity to the stock exchanges,  

(c) website of the listed entity,  

(d) any other document/ filing, as may be relevant, which has been relied upon to make this certification, 

 

for the year ended 31st March 2022 (“Review Period”) in respect of compliance with the provisions of:  

(a) the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (“SEBI Act”) and the Regulations, circulars, guidelines issued 

thereunder; and  

(b) the Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (“SCRA”), rules made thereunder and the Regulations, circulars, guidelines 

issued thereunder by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”); 

 

The specific Regulations, whose provisions and the circulars/ guidelines issued thereunder, have been examined, include:- 

(a) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015; 

(b) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;   

(c) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; Not applicable 

to the Company for the period under review; 

(d) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Depositories and Participants) Regulations, 2018; Not applicable to the Company 

for the period under review; 

(e) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018; Not applicable to 

the Company for the period under review; 

(f) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018 - Not applicable to the Company for the 

period under review; 

(g) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014 - Not applicable to the 

Company for the period under review; 

(h) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008 - Not applicable to the 

Company for the period under review; 

(i) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible and Redeemable Preference Shares) 

Regulations, 2013 - Not applicable to the Company for the period under review; 

and circulars/ guidelines issued thereunder; and based on the above examination,  

 

We hereby report that, during the Review Period: 

 

(a) The listed entity has complied with the provisions of the above Regulations and circulars/ guidelines issued thereunder, except in 

respect of matters specified below: -  

 

Sr. No. Compliance Requirement 

(Regulations/ circulars / 

guidelines including specific 

clause) 

Deviations Observations/ Remarks of the 

Practicing Company Secretary 

---------------------------------- 

 

(b) The listed entity has maintained proper records under the provisions of the above Regulations and circulars/ guidelines issued 

thereunder in so far as it appears from our examination of those records.  

 

(c) The following are the details of actions taken against the listed entity/ its promoters/ directors/ material subsidiaries either by SEBI or 

by Stock Exchanges (including under the Standard Operating Procedures issued by SEBI through various circulars) under the 

aforesaid Acts/ Regulations and circulars/ guidelines issued thereunder:  

 

Sr. 

No. 

 

Action taken by 

 

Details of violation 

 

Details of action taken 

e.g. fines, warning 

letter, debarment, etc. 

 

Observations/ remarks 

of the Practicing 

Company Secretary, if 

any. 
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---------------------------------- 

 

(d) The listed entity has taken the following actions to comply with the observations made in previous reports:  

 

Sr. 

No. 

 

Observations of the 

Practicing Company 

Secretary in the previous 

reports 

 

Observations made in the 

secretarial compliance 

report for the year ended.  

Actions taken by 

the listed entity, if 

any 

 

Comments of the 

Practicing 

Company 

Secretary on the 

actions taken by 

the listed entity 

 

1. The Company uploaded 

Outcome of Board Meeting 

held on November 12, 2020 for 

Approval of Unaudited 

Financial Results for 

Quarter and half year ended on 

September 30, 2020 at 

04:18:08 PM for Board 

Meeting concluded at 3.30 

P.M. The Upload was 18 

minutes and 8 seconds late. 

The Company uploaded 

Outcome of Board Meeting 

held on November 12, 

2020 for Approval of 

Unaudited Financial 

Results for 

Quarter and half year 

ended on September 30, 

2020 at 04:18:08 PM for 

Board Meeting concluded 

at 3.30 P.M. The Upload 

was 18 minutes and 8 

seconds late. 

N.A. N.A. 

2. Board Meeting Outcome dated 

August 31, 2020 for 

Recommending of 

Appointment of Director does 

not disclose details as per Point 

No. 7 of Annexure I of SEBI 

Circular No. 

CIRlCFD/CMD/4120 15 

dated September 09, 2015. 

The Company uploaded 

Board Meeting Outcome 

on August 31, 2020 for 

Board Meeting held on 

August 31, 2020 for 

approving various agendas 

including Recommending 

the appointment of Mr. 

Vineshkumar Popatlal 

Makadia as a non-

executive director subject 

to the approval 

of Reserve Bank of India 

and approval of any other 

statutory 

authorities, if any. 

The Company did not 

attached details of Director 

which is recommended for 

Appointment (Reason of 

Change, Brief Profile 

Disclosure of relationship 

between Directors) 

The said disclosure 

was made in the 

Notice to AGM sent 

to all the 

shareholders in 

which Mr. Vinesh 

kumar Popatlal 

Makadia was 

proposed to be 

appointed. It was 

Inadvertently missed 

out to be mentioned 

in Outcome. The 

Company is taking 

due care for the 

compliance of all the 

applicable SEBI 

LODR Circulars. 

The said disclosure 

was made in the 

Notice to AGM sent 

to all the 

shareholders in 

which Mr. Vinesh 

kumar Popatlal 

Makadia was 

proposed to be 

appointed. It was 

Inadvertently missed 

out to be mentioned 

in Outcome. The 

Company is taking 

due care for the 

compliance of all the 

applicable SEBI 

LODR Circulars. 

3. Company has not submitted 

Affirmation w.r.t Director 

being appointed is not debarred 

from holding the office of 

director by virtue of any SEBI 

order or any other such 

authority in Uploading 

Corporate Announcement on 

May 6, 2020, May 26, 2020 

and August 31, 2020 for 

Appointment/ Recommending 

Appointment of Director 

Company has not 

submitted Affirmation w.r.t 

Director being appointed is 

not debarred from holding 

the office of director by 

virtue of any SEBI order or 

any other such authority in 

Uploading Corporate 

Announcement on May 6, 

2020, May 26, 2020 and 

August 31, 2020 for 

Appointment/Recommendi

ng Appointment of 

Directors. 

The Company 

received the said 

affirmation from 

director and the same 

has been taken into 

consideration at the 

Board Meeting held 

for his appointment. 

It was inadvertently 

missed out to be 

mentioned in 

Outcome. The 

Company is taking 

due care for the 

compliance of all the 

applicable SEBI 

LODR Circulars. 

The Company 

received the said 

affirmation from 

director and the 

same has been taken 

into consideration at 

the Board Meeting 

held for his 

appointment. It was 

inadvertently 

missed out to be 

mentioned in 

Outcome. The 

Company is taking 

due care for the 

compliance of all the 

applicable SEBI 
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LODR Circulars. 

 

For, RENU BANG & ASSOCIATES, 

Practicing Company Secretary  

 

 

_____________ 

FCS No.: F10052 

C P No.: 12913 

UDIN:  

Date:  

Place:  
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CERTIFICATE OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER AND CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER 

To, 

The Board of Directors,  

KARNAVATI FINANCE LIMITED, 

We, Mr. Jay Ramanbhai Morzaria, Chairman and Managing Director, Mr. Kush Ramanbhai Morzaria Chief Finance Officer of 

Karnavati Finance Limited certify that: 

 
We have reviewed the financial statements and the cash flow statement of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2022 and to the 

best of our knowledge and belief: 

 
I. These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain statements that might be 

misleading. 

 

II. These statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in compliance with existing 

accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations. 

 
III. There are, To the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during the year ended March 

31, 2022 which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the Company’s Code of Conduct. 

 
IV. We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and that we have evaluated 

the effectiveness of the internal control system of the Company pertaining to financial reporting and We have not come across 

any reportable deficiencies in the design or operation of such internal controls. 

 
V. We further certify that we have indicated to the Auditors and the Audit Committee: 

 
a) There have been no significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the year; 

 

b) There have been no significant changes in accounting policies during the year and the same have been disclosed in 

the notes to the financial statements; and 

 
c) There have been no instances of significant fraud, of which we have become aware, involving management or any 

employee having a significant role in the Company’s internal control system over financial reporting. 

 
 

Date: September 9,2022 

Place: Mumbai 

 

Jay Ramanbhai Morzaria Kush Ramanbhai Morzaria Chairman 

& Managing Director CFO (KMP) 

DIN: 02338864 PAN: BAJPM1377E 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Karnavati Finance Limited                        Annual Report 2021-22 

 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT 

BACKGROUND 

Karnavati Finance Limited (KFL) is a Non-Banking Finance Company (“NBFC”), holding a Certificate of Registration from the 

Reserve Bank of India (“RBI”). The KFL is non- deposit accepting NBFC engaged in financial services. The market for this activity 

offers high potential for growth. The company is giving loan including personal loan, business loan, vehicle loan and loan against 

property to individuals as well as non-individual customers and also providing services of money changing via. FFMC License and is 

operating from Mumbai having its corporate office in Jamnagar. 

More than half of personal savings in India are invested in physical assets such as land, houses, cattle and gold. The Indian money 

market is classified into: 

a) The organized sector (comprising private, public and foreign owned commercial banks and cooperative banks, together known as 
scheduled banks); and 

b) The unorganized sector (compromising individual or family owned indigenous bankers or money lenders and non- banking 
financial companies (NBFCs). The unorganized sector and microcredit are still preferred over traditional banks in rural and sub-
urban areas, especially for non-productivity purposes, like ceremonies and short duration  loans. 

Since liberalization, the government has approved significant banking reforms. While some of these relate to nationalized banks (like 

encouraging mergers, reducing government interface and increasing profitability and competitiveness) other reforms have opened up the 

banking and insurance sectors to private and foreign players. 

Non-Banking Financial Companies (NBFC) are an integral part of the Indian Financial system, augmenting competition and 

diversification in the financial sector and complementing the banking system. The Indian NBFC sector has been providing credit to 

customers in the underserved and unbanked areas. Their channeling the savings and investments of customers and the subsequent 

capital formation is necessary for India’s economic growth and development. Their ability to innovate products in conformity with the 

needs of their clients is well established. 

 

GLOBAL ECONOMY 

The global economy is set to expand 5.6 percent in 2021—its strongest post-recession pace in 80 years. This recovery is uneven and 

largely reflects sharp rebounds in some major economies—most notably the United States, owing to substantial fiscal support—amid 

highly unequal vaccine access. In many emerging market and developing economies (EMDEs), elevated COVID-19 caseloads, 

obstacles to vaccination, and a partial withdrawal of macroeconomic support are offsetting some of the benefits of strengthening 

external demand and elevated commodity prices. By 2022, global output will remain about 2 percent below pre-pandemic projections, 

and per capita income losses incurred last year will not be fully unwound in about two-thirds of EMDEs. The global outlook remains 

subject to significant downside risks, which include the possibility of large COVID-19 waves in the context of new virus variants and 

financial stress amid high EMDE debt levels. Controlling the pandemic at the global level will require more equitable vaccine 

distribution, especially for lowincome countries. The legacies of the pandemic exacerbate the challenges facing policy makers as they 

balance the need to support the recovery while safeguarding price stability and fiscal sustainability. As the recovery becomes more 

entrenched, policy makers also need to continue efforts toward promoting growth-enhancing reforms and steering their economies onto 

a green, resilient, and inclusive development path 

Uncertainly about the length and depth of this health crisis propelled economic and financial crisis. Very well respected studies have 

suggested that emerging market and developing economics could suffer output losses of 3-8 percent in the short term. 

 

INDIAN ECONOMY 

In India, the pandemic hit the economy at a time when growth was already decelerating. India's economy is estimated to contract by 9.6 

per cent in the fiscal year 2020-21, reflecting a sharp drop in household spending and private investment, and the growth is expected to 

recover to 5.4 per cent in 2021. 

In its Global Economic Prospects report, the World Bank said that the informal sector, which accounts for four-fifths of employment, 

has been subject to severe income losses during the Covid-19 pandemic. 

In India, growth is expected to recover to 5.4 per cent in 2021, as the rebound from a low base is offset by muted private investment 

growth given financial sector weaknesses.In the financial sector, non-performing loans were already high before the pandemic. 

The informal sector, which accounts for four-fifths of employment, has also been subject to severe income losses during the pandemic. 

Recent high-frequency data indicate that the services and manufacturing recovery are gaining momentum. 

 

INDUSTRY STRUCTURE AND DEVELOPMENTS 

Non-banking finance companies (NBFCs), an integral component of the Indian lending ecosystem, could see a major impact of 

COVID-19 on their liquidity position and asset liquidity in the financial year 2020-21 due to complete halt of economic activity due to 

massive lockdown. Before the coronavirus outbreak, RBI and the government took several measures to support NBFCs since August 

2019, especially after credit crisis and confidence crisis in the NBFC sector, due to default by some major financial institutions in Infra 
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sector. The COVID-19 pandemic clipped the recovery. Small and medium sized NBFCs are most at risk due to disruption caused by the 

COVID-19 pandemic. The central bank has sought to cushion borrowers and lenders against the coronavirus outbreak effect, allowing 

companies a six month grace period on loan repayments. In last 2 months, several measures have been taken by RBI and Finance 

Ministry to boost liquidity and economy as follows; 

Measures taken by RBI 

Repo Rate and Reverse Repo Rate: RBI keeps Repo Rate unchanged at 4.00%. Reverse repo rate also remains unchanged at 3.35%. 

CRR: it has been decided to gradually restore the CRR in two phases in a non-disruptive manner. Accordingly, banks are required to 

maintain the CRR at 3.50 per cent of their NDTL effective from the reporting fortnight beginning March 27, 2021 and 4.00 per cent of 

their NDTL effective from fortnight beginning May 22, 2021. 

The minimum daily CRR balance requirement was reduced from 90.0% to 80.0% effective from the fortnight beginning March 28, 

2020. This was allowed up to September 25, 2020. 

Banks and other lending institutions were allowed to provide a moratorium on all term loans (including agriculture term loans, retail and 

crop loans). Initially the moratorium was permitted for three months on payment of installments falling due between March 1, 2020 to 

May 31, 2020, which was subsequently extended by another three months to August 31, 2020. Interest would continue to accrue on the 

outstanding portion of the term loan during the moratorium period. Installments include principal and/or interest component, bullet 

repayments, equated monthly installments and credit card dues. 

Loan Moratorium: In March, RBI Governor announced that lenders could give a moratorium of 3 months from March 2020 to May 

2020 which was further extended by 3 months in May 2020 from June 2020 to August 2020 on repayment of all term loans. Those 

accounts that have availed the moratorium facility, the period of moratorium will be excluded from the 90 days NPA classification 

norms of RBI. 

The Corporation offered the moratorium to eligible customers through the ‘opt-in’ mechanism during the moratorium period. Post the 

moratorium period, the movement of ageing has been at actuals. As at March 31, 2021, there are nil accounts where asset classification 

benefits are extended. The Corporation has made adequate provisions for impairment loss as per its Expected Credit Loss model. 

Disclosures are provided in the notes forming part of the standalone financial statement. 

During the quarter ended September 30, 2020 and December 30, 2020, no additional borrower accounts under moratorium granted 

category were classified as NPA which was not declared as NPA till August 31, 2020. The Corporation, however, classified such 

accounts as stage 3 and provisioned accordingly in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Such accounts were also reported as proforma NPA 

numbers during the quarter ended September 30, 2020 and December 31, 2020. Further details on asset quality is provided elsewhere in 

this report. 

As a COVID-19 relief scheme, the government announced a grant of ex-gratia payment of the difference between compound interest 

and simple interest for six months to eligible borrowers for the period March 1, 2020 up to August 31, 2020, irrespective of whether the 

moratorium was availed or not. The ex-gratia payment by the government was for certain categories of loans such as housing loans, 

consumer loans, MSME loans amongst others, which were standard as at February 29, 2020 and the aggregate facilities with all lending 

institutions did not exceed ` 2 crore. 

In November 2020, the Corporation implemented the scheme and credited the accounts or remitted the amounts to eligible borrowers. 

Of the Corporation’s total claim of ` 278 crore, an amount of ` 213 crore was received from the government. 

Following the Hon’ble SC judgement dated March 23, 2021, RBI in April 2021 instructed lenders to refund/ adjust interest on interest 

charged to all borrowers during the moratorium period i.e. March 1, 2020 to August 31, 2020, irrespective whether the moratorium had 

been availed or not. The methodology for determining the amount of interest on interest was issued by the Indian Banks’ Association 

TLTRO 1.0 & 2.0: Overall, the total liquidity support announced by RBI since February 6, 2020 up to March 31, 2021, amounted to 

Rs. 13.6 lac crore. This entailed a combination of open market operations, variable rate repos, long-term repo operations, targeted long-

term repo operations (TLTRO 1.0 and 2.0), reduction in the cash reserve ratio and statutory liquidity ratio of banks, special liquidity 

facility for mutual funds, refinance lines to NABARD, SIDBI, NHB and Exim Bank and simultaneous purchase and sale of securities 

under special open market operations to better manage the yield curve. The banking system remained in surplus throughout FY21  and  

the  surplus  ranged  between Rs. 2.1  lac  crore  and Rs. 6.7 lac crore 

SPECIAL RE-FINANCE FACILITY: National Housing Bank (NHB) has rolled out a ₹10,000-crore ‘Special Refinance Facility-

2021’ (SRF-2021) to provide short term refinance support to housing finance companies (HFCs) and other eligible Primary Lending 

Institutions (PLIs).This facility is expected to meet the short-term liquidity requirements of the PLIs and will also support them for 

onward lending to individuals to maintain steady growth in the housing finance sector,  according to NHB.This NHB initiative comes 

on the heels of the Reserve Bank of India (RBI) extending fresh support ( in the recent monetary policy review) under another Special 

Liquidity Facility-2 (SLF-2) of ₹ 10,000 crore to the NHB for one year to support the housing sector. 

 

OPPORTUNITIES AND THREATS OPPORTUNITIES: 

• Diversified portfolio products across personal finance, business finance and mortgage finance (Loan against property) 

• Opening of financial sector in India along with Introduction of Innovative products 

• Strong relationship with public, private as well as banks, institutions and investors 

• Focus on MSME segments traditionally not served by banks 

• Large untapped rural and urban markets. 
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• Enhanced digital solutions for business and collections 

THREATS: 

• Slower economic activity and weak rural demand could lead to high credit costs due to COVID-19 pandemic 

• Increased competition across the company’s product segments from captive finance companies and small finance banks 

• Inadequate availability of bank finance and upsurge in borrowing cost 

• External risks associated with liquidity stress, political uncertainties, fiscal slippage concerns, etc. 

• Growing number of Fintech companies. 

• Attraction and retention of human capital 

 

(Amount in Lakhs) 

Particulars F.Y. 2021-22 F.Y. 2020-21 

Revenue From Operations 219.53 100.30 

Other operation Income 20.43 2.50 

Impairment Profit 0 19.40 

Total Revenue 239.96 122.20 

Less: Total Expenses before Depreciation, Finance Cost & Tax 203.36 95.57 

Operating Profits before Depreciation, Finance Cost & Tax 44.14 26.63 

Less: Depreciation 0.77 1.24 

Finance cost 2.86 4.91 

Profit/(Loss) Before Tax 40.51 20.48 

Less: Current Tax 10.21 5.25 

Less: Deferred Tax Liability (Assets) (0.016) 2.88 

Profit/(Loss) after Tax 30.32 12.35 

Financial Performance 

During the financial year 2021-22, The Company has earned total income of Rs. 239.96 Lakhs from business activities as compared to 

Rs122.20 Lakhs in previous year. The total revenue of the company is increased by 96.36%. The Total income of the Company 

decreased mainly due to Interest on Loan received by company was decreased in comparison of previous year. 

The total Profit before tax for the financial year 2021-22 stood at Rs. 40.51 Lakhs and the total net profit after tax for the financial year 

2021-22 stood at Rs. 30.32 Lakhs. 

The Directors of the Company are planning to expand the business of the Company in areas of providing loan against securities and 

opening of FFMC branches in various cities in the current year and thus confident of presenting the better figures in the coming years. 

RESOURCES AND LIQUIDITY 

During the year under review, KFL has not raised any funds from the market by way of allotment of shares/bonds/ warrants/debentures, 

or by raising public deposits etc. 

PORTFOLIO 

KFL’s investment portfolio stood at Rs. 186,933,178/- as on March 31, 2022. KFL’s strategy for its portfolio is to focus on asset quality 

and asset mix to achieve good returns. 

OUTLOOK 

Estimates of India’s GDP for fiscal 2022, by various agencies and analysts, indicate a strong growth in GDP. However, in March-April 

2021, the second wave of the Covid-19 pandemic, where the number of new cases has increased significantly in India, has resulted in 

reimposition of localised/regional lock-down measures in various parts of the country. Going forward, economic activity will depend on 

the trajectory of the second wave of Covid-19, the progress of the vaccination programmeand the restrictions on activity and the period 

for which they continue A prolonged period of economic weakness caused by the second wave of the pandemic and uncertainty 

regarding normalisation could continue to impact banking sector loan growth, revenues, margins, asset quality and credit costs in fiscal 

2022. 

 

RISK MANAGEMENT 

As in the case of any lending entity, the entire proposition of the Company – providing finance to various segments of the economy is 
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on the fundamentals of managing the risk rather than avoiding it. With proper operational systems in place, the Company successfully 

manages these risks which also help in achieving the desired outcome, while fixing responsibility and accountability. The Board is 

responsible for monitoring and reviewing of the risk and taking steps to mitigate the same. 

 

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUECY 

The Company has an internal control system to commensurate with the size, scale and complexity of its operations and nature to ensure 

smooth business operation to provide reasonable assurance that all assets are safeguarded and protected from any kind of loss or misuse, 

transactions are authorized, recorded and reported properly and that all applicable statutes and corporate policies are duly complied 

with. 

 

SUBSIDIARY COMPANY 

As there are no subsidiaries of the company, investment made in subsidiaries is nil. 

 

HUMAN RESOURCES 

The Company takes pride in the commitment, competence and dedication of its employees in all areas of the business. The Company is 

committed to nurturing, enhancing and retaining its top talent through superior learning and organizational development. This is a 

critical pillar to support the organization’s growth and its sustainability in the long run. The Company also has zero tolerance for 

harassment of women at workplace. The overall industrial relations atmosphere continued to be cordial. 

 

SEGMENT-WISE OR PRODUCT WISE PERFORMANCE 

 

The company operates in only single segment. Hence segment wise performance is not applicable. 

 

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT 

This report describing the company’s activities, projections about future estimates, assumptions with regard to global economic 

conditions, government policies, etc may contain “forward looking statements” based on the information available with the company. 

Forward-looking statements are based on certain assumptions and expectations of future events. These statements are subject to certain 

risks and uncertainties. The company cannot guarantee that these assumptions and expectations are accurate or will be realized. The 

actual results may be different from those expressed or implied since the company's operations are affected by the many external and 

internal factors, which are beyond the control of the management. Hence the company assumes no responsibility in respect of forward-

looking statements that may be amended or modified in future on the basis of subsequent developments, information or events. 

Company follows all Mandatory Accounting Standards 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Independent Auditors’ Report 
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To the members of Karnavati Finance Limited 

Report on the financial statements and quarterly financial results 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Karnavati Finance Limited (the “Company”), which comprise the Balance sheet 

as at March 31, 2022, and the Statement of Profit and Loss for the period then ended, the Cash flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 

2022 and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. 

Management’s responsibility for the financial statements 

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with 

respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial 

performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian 

Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. This 

responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the 

assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting 

policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate 

internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to 

the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether 

due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, 

disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either 

intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

 

That Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process. 

 

 

 

 

 

Auditors’ responsibility 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Statement as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due 

to fraud or error and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a 

guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise 

from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the 

economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the Statement. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. 

We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the statement, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit 

procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may 

involve collusion. Forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 

circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the company's internal control. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures 

made by the Board of Directors 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of the Board of Directors' use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit 

evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the 

Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw 

attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial results or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify 
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our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future 

events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Statement, including the disclosures, and whether the financial 

results represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and 

significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We have taken into account the provisions of 

the Act, the Accounting and Auditing Standards and matters which are required to be included in the Audit Report under the provisions of 

the Act and the Rules made there under. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 

143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 

assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.  

Opinion 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid financial statements give a true 

and fair view of in conformity with the: 

(a) In the case of Balance sheet, of the State of Affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2022; and 

(b) In the case of Statement of profit and loss, of the Profit for the Year ended on March 31, 2022; and 

(c) Its cash flow statement for the year ended March 31, 2022. 

(d) Statement of changes in the equity for the year ended March 31, 2022. 

 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our 

responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered 

Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of 

the Companies Act, 2013 and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI’s Code 

of Ethics. 

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement were of most significance in our audit of the financial statements of 

the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our 

opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. 

Key Audit Matters How addressed in Audit 

 

How addressed in Audit 

Indian Accounting Standards (Ind-AS) as specified under 

Section 133 of the Act, read with relevant rules there under 

have been made 

mandatorily applicable for specified Non-Banking Finance 

Companies applicable with effect from April 1st, 2019 and 

consequently these standalone financial statements have 

been prepared by the management in  compliance with the 

Ind AS framework. As against the provisioning norms 

earlier prescribed by Reserve Bank of India and adopted by 

the company in prior years, Ind-AS 109 (Financial 

Instruments) requires the Company to recognise Expected 

credit Loss 

(ECL) on financial assets, which involves application of 

significant judgement and estimates including use of key 

assumptions such as probability of default and loss given 

default 

 

We have evaluated the management’s process and tested key 

controls around the determination of expected credit loss 

allowances, including controls relating to: 

 

– The identification of events leading to a significant 

increase in risk and 

credit impairment events; and 

 

The determination of the impaired credit loss allowances and 

the key assumptions including probability of default and loss 

given default on a forward looking basis having regard to 

historical experiences.  

 

We understood and assessed the appropriateness of the 

impairment methodology developed and used by the 

management at the entity level. This included assessing the 

appropriateness of key judgements. We tested the accuracy 
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Refer Note 30 to the Financial Statements 

 

of key data inputs and calculations used in this regard. 

 

We found that these key controls as above, were designed, 

implemented and operated effectively, and therefore have 

placed reliance on these key controls for the purposes of our 

audit of ECL and impairment loss allowances 

 

Emphasis of Matters 

We draw attention to note 32 to the Ind AS financial statements, which describes the uncertainty caused by Novel Coronavirus (COVID-19) 

pandemic with respect to the Company’s estimates of impairment of loans to customers and that such estimates may be affected by the 

severity and duration of the pandemic. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter. 

We would like to draw emphasis on the matter of Contingent Liability (Refer Note 24 to financial statements) on Inter Corporate Loan 

which arises through the pass through transaction on NIM basis entered by the Company, consequent to asset under pass through 

arrangement becoming NPA on account of dispute in transaction.  Loss likely to arise is to the extent of interest liability on account of 

negative outcome of litigation.  Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter. 

Information Other than the Financials Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon (Other Information) 

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in 

the Corporate Overview, Board’s Report, Management Discussion and Analysis Report and Report on Corporate Governance in the Annual 

Report of the Company for the financial year 2021-22, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The 

reports containing the other information as above are expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor’s report. 

 

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not express any form of assurance conclusion 

thereon. 

 

 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information identified above when it becomes 

available and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge 

obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 

 

When we read the reports containing the other information, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are required to 

communicate the matter to those charged with governance. 

 

Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

(1) As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-

section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in the Annexure 1, statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 

4 of the order to the extent applicable. 

(2) As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 

a) We have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the 

purpose of our audit; 

 

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as appears from our 

examination of the books of account; 

 

c) The Balance Sheet and Statement of Profit and Loss and Cash Flow statement dealt with by this report are in agreement with the 

books of account; 

 

d) In our opinion, the balance sheet and statement of profit and loss and Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this report comply with 

the Indian Accounting Standards referred to in section 133 of the Act read with rules issued thereunder; 

 

e) On the basis of written representations received from the directors as at 31st March 2022, and taken on record by the Board of 

Directors, we report that none of the directors is disqualified as at 31st March 2022, from being appointed as a director in terms of 

subsection (2) of section 164 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and operating 

effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure 2” to this report. 
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g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Section 197(16) of the Act, in our 

opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us: the remuneration paid/ provided by the 

Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act. 

 

h) With respect to the matters to be included in the Auditor’ Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and 

Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us: 

 

i. The Company has disclosed impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its financial statements - . 

 

ii. The Company has not entered into any long-term contracts including derivative contracts, requiring provision under 

applicable laws or accounting standards, for material foreseeable losses. 

 

iii. There are no amounts which required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company. 

 

  

 FOR D G M S & Co. 

(Chartered Accountants) 

F. R. No. :112187W 

Date : 29th May 2022 

Place : Mumbai 

 

 

 

 

 HIREN JAYANTILAL MARU 

Partner 

M. No. : 115279 

UDIN: 22115279AJVIRL4692 
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Annexure 1 to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date on financial statements of Karnavati Finance Limited 

i. (a)The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situation of fixed 

assets. 

 

(b) The fixed assets of the company have been physically verified by the management during the year and no material 

discrepancies between the book records and the physical inventory have been noticed. In our opinion, the frequency of 

verification is reasonable. 

 

(c) The title deed of immovable property is held in the name of the company. 

 

ii. The Company has inventory of foreign currency and it is measured as per the RBI Exchange rate as on 31st March 2022.  

 

iii. According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to 

companies, firms, limited Liability Partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the 

Companies Act, 2013. 

 

iv. According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not granted any loans, investments, guarantees, and 

security covered under the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 and hence this clause is not applicable 

to the company. 

 

v. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any deposits from the public to which 

the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of Section 73 to Section 76 or any other relevant provisions 

of the Act and the rules framed there under apply 

 

vi. To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Central Government of India has 

not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Act for any services rendered by the 

company. 

 

vii.  (a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has been regular in depositing undisputed statutory 

dues. 

 

 (b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues outstanding of income tax, sales tax, customs 

duty, service tax, excise duty, cess and goods and service tax on account of any dispute. 

 

viii. The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowing to a financial institutions or banks. 

 

 

 

Annexure 1 to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date on financial statements of Karnavati Finance Limited (Cont.) 

 

 

ix. Managerial Remuneration had been paid by the company during the year in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by 

the provisions of section 197 read with schedule V to Companies Act. 

 

x. According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company examined by us, all the transactions 

with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 and the details have been disclosed 

in financial statements, as required by the applicable accounting standards. 

 

xi. The company has not entered into any non cash transactions with Directors or persons connected with them. 

 

xii. In our opinion, the company is Non Banking Finance Company registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 

1934 vide certificate of registration no. 13.00064 dated February 24, 1998. 

 

 FOR D G M S & Co. 
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(Chartered Accountants) 

F. R. No. :112187W 

 

 

 

  
Date : 29th May 2022 

Place : Mumbai 

HIREN JAYANTILAL MARU 

Partner 

M. No. : 115279 

UDIN: 22115279AJVIRL4692 
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Annexure 2 to The Independent Auditor’s Report Of Even Date On The Financial Statements Of Karnavati Finance Limited 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub Section 3 of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Karnavati Finance Limited (“the company”) as of 31st March 

2022 in conjunction with our Audit of the standalone financial statements of the company for the period ended on that date. 

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control over 

financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note 

on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). These 

responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively 

for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, safeguarding of its assets, the 

prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of 

reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013. 

Auditors’ Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting based on our audit. We 

conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the Guidance 

Note ) and the standards on Auditing ,issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143 (10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to 

the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by 

the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with the ethical 

requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over 

financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system over 

financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an 

understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and 

evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s 

judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s 

internal financial controls system over financial reporting. 

 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the 

reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external Purposes in accordance with generally accepted 

accounting principles. A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain 

to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the 

company,(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in 

accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or 

timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial 

statements. 

Inherent Limitations of internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper 

management override of controls , material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also projections of any 

evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial 

controls over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the 

policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the company , has in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such 

internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31st  March, 2022, based on the internal financial control 

over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance 

note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 
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 FOR D G M S & Co. 

(Chartered Accountants) 

F. R. No. :112187W 

Date : 29th May 2022 

Place : Mumbai 

 

 

 

 

 HIREN JAYANTILAL MARU 

Partner 

M. No. : 115279 

UDIN: 22115279AJVIRL4692 
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AUDITORS' REPORT 

Pursuant to Non Banking Financial Companies Auditor's Report (Reserve Bank) Direction, 2016 

To, 

The Board of Directors 

Karnavati Finance Limited 

Mumbai. 

 

We have audited the Balance Sheet of Karnavati Finance Limited as at 31st March 2022, and the annexed statement of Profit and Loss of the 

Company for the period ended on that date and report that: 

1. Pursuant to the Non - Banking Financial Companies Auditor’s Report (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 issued by Reserve Bank of India 

and on the basis of books and records of KARNAVATI FINANCE LIMITED and the information provided to us during the course of audit, 

we place our observations on the matters specified in Paragraph 3 and 4 of the aforementioned directions. 

A.  

i. Since the Company is a NBFC Company, it has been register as Non-Banking Finance Company (NBFC) under Section 45 IA of 

Reserve Bank of India Act – 1934. 

ii. The Company has obtained a valid Certificate of Registration. 

iii. The Company is entitled to continue to hold such Certificate of Registration in term of its principal business criteria as on 31st 

March 2022. 

iv. The Company is meeting the required Net Owned Fund of NBFC – Investment and Credit Finance 

B. 

i. The Board has passed a resolution for non – acceptance of any public deposits. 

 

ii. The Company has not accepted deposits in compliance with the provisions and the directions, circulars and guidelines issued by 

the Central Government from time to time as applicable to a NBFC company. 

 

iii. The Company is NBFC – Investment and Credit Finance is a financial institution carrying on as its principal business – providing 

of finance whether by making loans or advance or otherwise for any activity other than its own and the acquisition of securities. 

 

iv. The Company has complied with the Prudential Norms on income recognition, asset classification as provided. The provisions of 

prudential norms on income recognition, accounting standards, asset classification, provisioning for bad & doubtful debts and 

concentration of credit / investments as specified in the directions issued by the Reserve Bank of India in terms of the Non- 

Banking Financial (Deposit Accepting or Holding) Companies Prudential Norms (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 are not 

applicable to the Company. 

 

v. Submission of Yearly return on prudential norms as specified in Non-Banking Financial (Non Deposit Accepting or Holding) 

Companies Prudential Norms (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 is applicable to the Company. 

 

vi. The Company has not opened any branches / offices nor has appointed any agents during the period under review. 

  

 FOR D G M S & Co. 

(Chartered Accountants) 

F. R. No. :112187W 

Date : 29th May 2022 

Place : Mumbai 

 

 

 

 

 HIREN JAYANTILAL MARU 

Partner 

M. No. : 115279 

UDIN : 22115279AJVIRL4692 

  

  

  

 

 











 
 

KARNAVATI FINANCE LIMITED 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON 31ST MARCH, 2022 

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 
1. Notes to Accounts 

 

Corporate Information 

 

Karnavati Finance Limited, incorporated on 05-12-1984 is a Non banking Finance Company registered with Reserve Bank 

of India engaged in business of financing. The company has its registered office at 705, Palm Spring Centre, Above 

Croma, Near New Infinity Mall, Link Road, Malad (West), Mumbai – 400064 and Its Administrative & Corporate Office 

at “Vraj” 5th Floor, Near Teen Batti, Limda Lane, Jamnagar – 361001 

 

The Company is Non - deposit taking non-banking financial company (NBFC) registered with the Reserve Bank of India 

(RBI) with effect from 24th February 1998, with Registration No. A-13.00064. RBI, vide the circular – ‘Harmonization of 

different categories of NBFCs’ issued on 22 February 2019, with a view to provide NBFCs with greater operational 

flexibility and harmonization of different categories of NBFCs into fewer categories based on the principle of regulation 

by activity, merged the three categories of NBFCs viz. Asset Finance Companies (AFC), Loan Companies (LCs) and 

Investment Companies (ICs) into a new category called NBFC – Investment and Credit Company (NBFC-ICC). 

Accordingly, the Company has been reclassified as NBFC – Investment and Credit Company (NBFC-ICC). 

 

The Company has initiated the process of obtaining the confirmation from suppliers who have registered under the Micro, 

Small and Medium enterprise development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act, 2006) based on the information available with the 

Company. The Balance due to micro and small enterprise as defined under MSMED Act, 2006 is Rs. 82,017. No Interest 

has been paid under MSMED Act, 2006 during the year. 

 

The disclosures required in terms of paragraph 18 of the Non Banking Financial Company - Non Systematically Important 

Non - Deposit taking (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 are given in the Annexure forming part of these Financial 

Statements. 

 

 

2. Basis of Preparation 

 

The financial statements of the company have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (IND - 

AS) as per Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended from time to time and notified under 

section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) along with other relevant provisions of the Act and the Master Direction 

– Non-Banking Financial Company – Non Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking Company and Deposit taking 

Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 (‘the NBFC Master Directions’) issued by RBI. The financial statements have 

been prepared on a going concern basis. The Company uses accrual basis of accounting except in case of significant 

uncertainties. 

 

For all periods up to and including the year ended 31 March 2022, the Company had prepared its financial statements in 

accordance with accounting standards notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act 2013, read together with paragraph 

7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and the Companies (Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016 and the 

NBFC Master Directions (hereinafter referred as ‘Previous GAAP’). These financial statements for the year ended 31 

March 2022 are prepared in accordance with IND - AS.  

 

Further the company follows prudential norms for Income Recognition, asset classification and provisioning for Non-

performing assets as well as contingency provision for standard assets as prescribed by the Reserve Bank of India (RBI) 

for Non - Banking Financial Companies. 

 

 

2.1 

 

a. IND AS - 1 Presentation of Financial Statement : - 

 

 

The Company presents its Balance Sheet in order of liquidity. 

 

The Company generally reports financial assets and financial liabilities on a gross basis in the Balance Sheet. 

They are offset and reported net only when Ind AS specifically permits the same or it has an unconditional 

legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts without being contingent on a future event. Similarly, 

the Company offsets incomes and expenses and reports the same on a net basis when permitted by Ind AS 

specifically unless they are material in nature. 

 

Critical accounting estimates and judgments 

 

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires Management to make use of estimates and 

judgments. In view of the inherent uncertainties and a level of subjectivity involved in measurement of items, it 

is possible that the outcomes in the subsequent financial years could differ from those on which the 

Management’s estimates are based. 

  

 

b. IND AS - 10 Events After the Reporting Period: - 
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Effects of, events occurred after Reporting Period and having material effect on financial statements are reflected 

in the accounts at appropriate places. 

 

 

c. IND AS - 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates & Errors: - 

 

Material items of prior period, non-recurring and extra ordinary items are shown separately, If any. 

 

 

d. IND AS – 115  Revenue from contract with customer :- 

 

Interest income 

The Company recognizes interest income using Effective Interest Rate (EIR) on all financial assets subsequently 

measured at amortized cost or fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI). EIR is calculated by 

considering all costs and incomes attributable to acquisition of a financial asset or assumption of a financial 

liability and it represents a rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments/receipts through the 

expected life of the financial asset/financial liability to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset or to the 

amortized cost of a financial liability. 

 

The Company recognizes interest income by applying the EIR to the gross carrying amount of financial assets 

other than credit-impaired assets. The Company recognizes interest income on the amortized cost net of 

impairment loss of the financial asset at EIR. If the financial asset is no longer credit-impaired the Company 

reverts to calculating interest income on a gross basis. 

 

Delayed payment interest (penal interest) levied on customers for delay in repayments/nonpayment of 

contractual cash flows is recognized on realization. 

 

Interest on financial assets subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) is recognized at 

the contractual rate of interest. 

 

Other revenue from operations 

 

The Company recognizes revenue from contracts with customers (other than financial assets to which Ind AS 

109 ‘Financial Instruments’ is applicable) based on a comprehensive assessment model as set out in Ind AS 115 

‘Revenue from contracts with customers’. The Company identifies contract(s) with a customer and its 

performance obligations under the contract, determines the transaction price and its allocation to the performance 

obligations in the contract and recognizes revenue only on satisfactory completion of performance obligations. 

Revenue is measured at fair value of the consideration received or receivable. 

 

Taxes 

Incomes are recognized net of the Goods and Services Tax/Service Tax, wherever applicable. 

 

Expenditures 

 

Finance costs 

 

Borrowing costs on financial liabilities are recognized using the EIR 

 

Fees and commission expenses 

 

Fees and commission expenses which are not directly linked to the sourcing of financial assets, such as 

commission/incentive incurred on value added services and products distribution, recovery charges and fees 

payable for management of portfolio etc., are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss on an accrual basis. 

 

Taxes 

Expenses are recognized net of the Goods and Services Tax/Service Tax, except where credit for the input tax is 

not statutorily permitted. 

 

e. IND AS - 109 Financial Instruments :- 

A) Financial Assets 

I. Initial recognition and measurement 

All financial assets are recognized initially at fair value when the parties become party to the 

contractual provisions of the financial asset. In case of financial assets which are not recorded at 

fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or 

issue of the financial assets, are adjusted to the fair value on initial recognition. 

 

II. Subsequent Measurement 
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The Company classifies its financial assets into various measurement categories. The 

classification depends on the contractual terms of the financial assets’ cash flows and the 

Company’s business model for managing financial assets. 

 

a) Financial Assets measured at amortized cost 

A financial asset is measured at Amortized Cost if it is held within a business model whose 

objective is to hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual 

terms of the Financial Asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely 

payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

 

 

b) Financial Assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) 

A financial asset is measured at FVOCI if it is held within a business model whose objective 

is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and 

contractual terms of financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely 

payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

 

 

c) Financial Assets measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) 

A financial assets which is not classified in any of the above categories are measured at 

FVTPL. 

 

B)  Financial liabilities 

a. Initial recognition and measurement 

All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of borrowings and 

payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs. The company’s financial liabilities include 

trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank overdrafts 

 

b. Subsequent Measurement 

Financial Liabilities are subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective interest 

method. 

 

C) Derecognition of Financial assets and Financial liabilities 

a) Financial Assets 

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual cash flows from the asset expire or 

it transfers its rights to receive contractual cash flows from the financial asset in a transaction in which 

substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are transferred. Any interest in transferred financial 

assets that is created or retained by the Company is recognized as a separate asset or liability. 

 

b) Financial Liability 

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or 

expires. Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on 

substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an 

exchange or modification is treated as de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a 

new liability. The difference between the carrying value of the original financial liability and the 

consideration paid is recognized in profit or loss. 

 

D)  Offsetting 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are generally reported gross                            in the balance sheet. 

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is presented in the balance sheet when the 

Company has a legal right to offset the amounts and intends to settle on a net basis or to realize the asset 

and settle the liability simultaneously in all the following circumstances: 

a) The Normal Course of business 

b) The Event of Default 

c) The Event of insolvency or bankruptcy of the company and/or its counterparties 

 

E) Impairment of Financial assets 

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company uses ‘Expected Credit Loss’ model (ECL), for evaluating 

impairment of financial assets other than those measured at Fair value through profit and loss. 

1) Overview of the Expected Credit Loss (ECL)  

Expected Credit Loss, at each reporting date, is measured through a loss allowance for a financial asset: 

 

- At an amount equal to the lifetime expected credit losses if the credit risk on that financial 

instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition. 

 

- At an amount equal to 12 month expected credit losses if the credit risk on that financial 

instrument has not increased significantly since initial recognition. 
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Lifetime expected credit losses means expected credit losses that result from all possible default events over 

the expected life of a financial asset. 

 

12-month expected credit losses means the portion of Lifetime ECL that represent the ECLs that result from 

default events on financial assets that are possible within the 12 months after the reporting date. 

 

The Company performs an assessment, at the end of each reporting period, of whether a financial assets 

credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition. When making the assessment, the change in 

the risk of a default occurring over the expected life of the financial instrument is used instead of the change 

in the amount of expected credit losses 

 

Based on the above process, the company categorizes its loans into three stages as described below: 

 

For Non – Impaired financial assets 

• Stage 1 is comprised of all non-impaired financial assets which have not experienced a significant 

increase in credit risk (SICR) since initial recognition. A 12- Month ECL provision is made for 

stage 1 financial assets. In assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly, the company 

compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial asset as at  the reporting date with the risk 

of a default occurring on the financial asset as at the date of initial recognition. 

 

• Stage 2 is comprised of all non-impaired financial assets which have experienced a significant 

increase in credit risk since initial recognition. The company recognises lifetime ECL for stage 2 

financial assets. In subsequent reporting periods, if the credit risk of the financial instrument 

improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, 

then entities shall revert to recognizing 12 months ECL Provision. 

 

For impaired financial assets: 

Financial assets are classified as stage 3 when there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of 

one or more loss events that have occurred after initial recognition with a negative impact on the 

estimated future cash flow of a loan or a portfolio of loans. The company recognizes lifetime ECL for 

impaired financial assets. 

 

2) Estimation of Expected Credit Loss 

The mechanics of the ECL calculations are outlined below and the key elements are, as follows: 

 

Probability of Default (PD) – The Probability of default is an estimate of the likelihood of default over a 

given time horizon. 

 

The Company uses historical information where available to determine PD. Considering the different 

products and schemes, the Company has bifurcated its loan portfolio into various pools. For certain pools 

where historical information is available, the PD is calculated considering fresh slippage of past years. For 

those pools where historical information is not available, the PD/default rates as stated by external reporting 

agencies is considered. 

 

Exposure at Default (EAD) – The Exposure at default is an estimate of the exposure at a future default 

date, considering expected changes in the exposure after the reporting date, including repayments of 

principal and interest, whether scheduled by contract or otherwise, expected drawdowns on committed 

facilities, and accrued interest from missed payments. 

 

Loss Given Default (LGD) – The Loss given default is an estimate of the loss arising in the case where a 

default occurs at a given time. It is based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due and 

those that the lender would expect to receive, including from the realization of any collateral. 

 

f. IND AS - 16 Property, Plant and Equipment :- 

 

Property, plant and equipment are carried at historical cost of acquisition less accumulated depreciation and 

impairment losses, consistent with the criteria specified in Ind AS 16 ‘Property, Plant and Equipment’. 

 

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 

 

a) Depreciation is provided on a pro-rata basis for all tangible assets on straight line method over the useful life of 

assets, except buildings which is determined on written down value method. 

 

b) Useful lives of assets are determined by the Management by an internal technical assessment except where such 

assessment suggests a life significantly different from those prescribed by Schedule II – Part C of the 

Companies Act, 2013 where the useful life is as assessed and certified by a technical expert. 

 

c) Depreciation on leasehold improvements is provided on straight line method over the primary period of lease of 

premises or 5 years whichever is less. 
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d) Depreciation on addition to assets and assets sold during the year is being provided for on a pro rata basis with 

reference to the month in which such asset is added or sold as the case may be. 

 

e) Assets having unit value up to Rs. 5,000 is depreciated fully in the financial year of purchase of asset. 

 

f)   An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognized is derecognized upon 

disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising 

on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying 

amount of the asset) is included under other income in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is 

derecognized. 

 

g) The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at 

each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate. 

 

g. IND AS 21 – The effects of changes in foreign exchange rates :- 

 

The Company’s financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee, which is also the Company’s functional 

currency 

 

Initial recognition 

 

Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the reporting currency, by applying to the foreign currency amount 

the exchange rate between the reporting currency and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction. 

 

Conversion 

 

Foreign currency monetary items are re-translated using the exchange rate prevailing at the reporting date. 

Nonmonetary items, which are measured in terms of historical cost denominated in a foreign currency, are 

reported using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. 

 

 Exchange differences 

 

All exchange differences are accounted in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

 

Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are normally recorded at the exchange rate prevailing at the time 

of the transactions. 

 

Any income or expenses on account of exchange difference either on settlement or on Balance sheet Valuation 

is recognized in the profit and loss account except in cases where they relate to acquisition of fixed assets in 

which case they are adjusted to the carrying cost of such assets.  

 

 

 

h. IND AS – 24  Related Party Disclosure :- 

 

The Disclosures of Transaction with the related parties as defined in the related parties as defined in the 

Accounting Standard are given in notes to account. 

 

i. IND AS – 33  Earnings Per Share :- 

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss attributable to equity shareholders (after 

deducting preference dividends and attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares 

outstanding during the period.  

 

Partly paid equity shares are treated as a fraction of equity share to the extent that they are entitled to participate 

in dividends relative to a fully paid equity share during the reporting period. 

 

The Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for the events such as 

bonus issue, right issue that have changed the number of equity shares.    

 

j. IND AS - 12  Income Taxes :- 

 

Current Tax:- 

 

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the 

taxation authorities, in accordance with the Income Tax Act, 1961 and the Income Computation and Disclosure 

Standards (ICDS) prescribed therein. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are 

enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date.  
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Current tax relating to items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized in correlation to the underlying 

transaction either in OCI or directly in other equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax 

returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes 

provisions where appropriate. 

 

Deferred Taxes:- 

  

Deferred tax is provided using the Balance Sheet approach on temporary differences between the tax bases of 

assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date. 

 

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are 

recognized for deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be 

available against which the deductible temporary differences can be utilized 

 

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is 

no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to 

be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets, if any, are reassessed at each reporting date and are recognized to 

the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered. 

 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the 

asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or 

substantively enacted at the reporting date. 

 

Deferred tax relating to items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized either in OCI or in other equity. 

 

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax 

assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation 

authority. 

 

 

k. IND AS – 37 Provisions Contingent liabilities and contingent assets :- 

The Company creates a provision when there is present obligation as a result of a past event that probably 

requires an outflow of resources and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. 

 

A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that 

may, but probably will not, require an outflow of resources. The Company also discloses present obligations for 

which a reliable estimate cannot be made. When there is a possible obligation or a present obligation in respect 

of which the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is made. 

 

l. IND AS – 108 Operating Segments 

The Company is engaged in the business segment of Financing, whose operating results are regularly reviewed 

by the entity’s chief operating decision maker to make decisions about resources to be allocated and to assess its 

performance, and for which discrete financial information is available. Further other business segments do not 

exceed the quantitative thresholds as defined by the Ind AS 108 on “Operating Segment”. Hence, there are no 

separate reportable segments, as required by the Ind AS 108 on “Operating Segment”. 

 

m. Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original 

maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. For the purpose of 

the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short- term deposits, as defined above, 

net of outstanding bank overdrafts if any, as they are considered an integral part of the Company’s cash 

management. 

 

n. Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the Ind AS requires the management to make 

judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and 

liabilities and the accompanying disclosure and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting 

period. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting 

estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised if the revision affects only that period or 

in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods. Although 

these estimates are based on the management’s best knowledge of current events and actions, uncertainty about 

these assumptions and estimates could result in the outcomes requiring a material adjustment to the carrying 

amounts of assets or liabilities in future periods. 

 

In particular, information about significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgments in applying 

accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements is 

included in the following notes: 

 

 

i) Business Model Assessment 



 
 

KARNAVATI FINANCE LIMITED 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON 31ST MARCH, 2022 

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 
Classification and measurement of financial assets depends on the results of the SPPI and the business 

model test. The Company determines the business model at a level that reflects how groups of financial 

assets are managed together to achieve a particular business objective. This assessment includes judgement 

reflecting all relevant evidence including how the performance of the assets is evaluated and their 

performance measured, the risks that affect the performance of the assets and how these are managed and 

how the managers of the assets are compensated. The Company monitors financial assets measured at 

amortized cost or fair value through other comprehensive income that are derecognized prior to their 

maturity to understand the reason for their disposal and whether the reasons are consistent with the 

objective of the business for which the asset was held. Monitoring is part of the Company’s continuous 

assessment of whether the business model for which the remaining financial assets are held continues to be 

appropriate and if it is not appropriate whether there has been a change in business model and so a 

prospective change to the classification of those assets. 

 

ii) Effective Interest Rate (EIR) Method 

The Company’s EIR methodology, recognizes interest income using a rate of return that represents the best 

estimate of a constant rate of return over the expected behavioral life of loans given and recognizes the 

effect of potentially different interest rates at various stages and other characteristics of the product life 

cycle (including prepayments and penalty interest and charges). 

 

This estimation, by nature, requires an element of judgement regarding the expected behavior and life-cycle 

of the instruments, probable fluctuations in collateral value as well as expected changes to India’s base rate 

and other fee income/expense that are integral parts of the instrument. 

 

iii)  Impairment of loans portfolio 

The measurement of impairment losses across all categories of financial assets requires judgement, in 

particular, the estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows and collateral values when 

determining impairment losses and the assessment of a significant increase in credit risk. These estimates 

are driven by a number of factors, changes in which can result in different levels of allowances. 

It has been the Company’s policy to regularly review its models in the context of actual loss experience and 

adjust when necessary. 

 

iv)  Defined employee benefit assets and liabilities 

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined 

using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from 

actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary 

increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a 

defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed 

at each reporting date. 

 

v) Fair Value Measurement 

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be 

measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using various valuation 

techniques. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is 

not feasible, a degree of judgment is required in establishing fair values. Judgments include considerations 

of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could 

affect the reported fair value of financial instruments. 

 

For D G M S & Co. 

Chartered Accountants  

  

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Karnavati Finance Limited 

    

        

        

        

Hiren J. Maru    Raman P Morzaria   Jay R Morzaria  

Partner     Whole time Director    Managing Director  

M. No. 115279   DIN 00203310   DIN 02338864 

FRN: 0112187W     
Place:  

Date : 

UDIN:       
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25. Earnings Per Share:- 

  

Particulars Period Ended on 

31st March 2022 

(Rs.) 

Period Ended on 

31st March 2021 

(Rs.) 

 

Profit / (Loss) after tax attributable to Equity  

Shareholders (A) 

 

Weighted Number of Equity Share outstanding During 

the year (B) (In Nos.) 

 

Basic Earnings Per Share for each Share of Rs.10/- 

(A) / (B) 

 

 

30,31,203 

 

 

1,00,50,000 

   

 

 

0.30 

 

 

12,34,814 

      

 

      1,00,50,000 

 

 

 

0.12 

 

 

26. Auditors remuneration for the year is as follows:-  

   Statutory Audit Fees: Rs. 1, 50,000/- (previous year Rs. 1, 50,000/-) 

   Tax Audit Fees: Rs. 40,000/- (previous year Rs.40, 000/-) 

 

27. Related Party Disclosure :- 

The Disclosures of Transaction with the related parties as defined in the     in the Accounting Standard are as 

follows: 

 

 Details of Related parties involved: 

 

Name of the person Relation With Company 

 

Mr. Raman Morzaria Whole Time Director (Promoter) 

 

Mr. Jay Raman Morzaria Managing Director (Promoter) 

 

Mr. Kush Raman Morzaria Chief Financial Officer (CFO-KMP) (Promoter Group) 

 

Mr. Parth chandreshbhai Maniar 

 

Non-Executive( Independent) Director 

Mrs. Birmda Minoobhai Bilimoria 

 

Non-Executive( Independent) Director 

Ms. Akanksha Rai 

 

Company Secretary (KMP) 

 

 

 Related Parties which are Director/Designated partner in other    Entities: 

 

Sr. 

No. 

Name of Related Party Nature of Interest 

 

Name of the Entities 

 

Nature of Interest 

1. Mr. Raman Morzaria Vraj Kamman Real Estate Developers 

Private Limited 

 

Director (Promoter) and 

Member 

Midas Impex Private Limited 

 

Director (Promoter) and 

Member 

 

Vraj Construction Private Limited 

 

Director (Promoter) and 

Member 

Vrajkamman Sai Hospitality Private 

Limited 

 

Director  
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  Vrajlegacy Infratech 

Private Limited 

Director & 

Shareholder 

  Vraj Karan Real Estate Developers 

Private Limited 

Director 

2. Mr. Jay Raman Morzaria Vraj Kamman Real Estate Developers 

Private Limited 

 

Director (Promoter) and 

Member 

Midas Impex Private Limited 

 

Director (Promoter) and 

Member 

 

Vraj Construction Private  

Limited 

 

Director (Promoter) and 

Member 

Vrajkamman Sai Hospitality Private 

Limited 

 

Director  

  Vraj Karan Real Estate Developers 

Private Limited 

Director 

  Vraj Prime Developers Private 

Limited 

Director 

  Roots and Stalks Digital Private 

Limited 

 

Director (Promoter) 

Vraj kamman Developers LLP 

 

Designated Partner 

Vraj BVG Infrasheltors LLP 

 

Designated Partner 

3 Mr. Kush Raman Morzaria Midas Impex Private Limited  Director 

Vraj BVG Infrasheltors LLP 

 

Designated Partner 

4.  Mr. Parth Chandresh Maniar NIL NIL 

 

5.  Mrs. Birmda Minoobhai Bilimoria NIL NIL 

 

6.  Ms. Akanksha Rai NIL NIL 

 

     Transactions with Related parties: 

  

 

 

 

 

 

     Loan Details from related parties 

Name of person Balance as on 

01-04-2021 

Addition during 

the year 

Repayment 

during the year 

Balance as on 31-03-

2022 

 

Raman Morzaria -4,79,333 43,74,598 38,95,265 0.00 

Sr. 

No. 

Name of the person Nature of Transaction Amount (Rs.) 

1 Mr. Raman Morzaria Remuneration  9,00,000 

2 Mr. Raman Morzaria Rent 6,00,000 

3 Mr. Raman Morzaria Interest on Loan 942 

5 Mr. Kush Morzaria Salary 3,00,000 

6 Mr. Jay Morzaria Remuneration 12,00,000 

7 Mr. Jay Morzaria Interest on Loan 45,191 

9 Ms. Akanksha Rai Salary 1,80,000 
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Jay Morzaria 1,45,180 35,40,672 29,30,001 7,55,851 

 

28. The previous year’s figures have been reworked, regrouped, and reclassified wherever necessary. Amounts 

and other disclosures for the preceding year are included as an integral par of the current year financial 

statements and are to be read in relation to the amounts and other disclosures relating to the current year. 

 

29. Credit and Debit balances of unsecured loans, sundry creditors, sundry Debtors, loans and Advances are 

subject to confirmation and therefore the effect of the same on profit could not be ascertained. 

 

30. Risk Management 

 

The Company’s principal financial liabilities comprise borrowings and trade and other payables. The main 

purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance and support the company’s operations. The Company’s 

principal financial assets include loans, investments, cash and cash equivalents and other receivables that 

are derived directly from its operations. As a financial lending institution, Company is exposed to various 

risks that are related to lending business and operating environment. The principal objective in Company‘s 

risk management processes is to measure and monitor the various risks that Company is subject to and to 

follow policies and procedures to address such risks. 

 

The Company’s Risk Management Committee of the Board of directors constituted in accordance with the 

Reserve Bank of India regulations has overall responsibility for overseeing the implementation of the Risk 

Management Policy. The committee meets at least twice in a year to review the Risk Management 

practices. Risk Management department periodically places its report to the committee for review. The 

committee’s suggestions for improving the Risk Management Practices are implemented by the Risk 

Management department. 

 

Risk Management department shall be responsible for the following: 

 

a) Identifying the various risks associated with the activities of the Company and assessing 

their impact on the business. 

 

b) Measuring the risks and suggesting measures to effectively mitigate the risks. 

However, the primary responsibility for managing the various risks on a day to day basis will 

be with the heads of the respective business units of the company. 

   

The Company is generally exposed to credit risk, liquidity risk, market risk and operational risk. 

 

     Impairment Assessment  

  

The Company is mainly engaged in the business of providing Personal loans, Business Loan, Term Loan & 

Loan against property. The tenure of the loans generally is for 12 to 60 months. 

 

The Company also provides unsecured personal loans to salaried individuals and unsecured loans to traders 

and self-employed. The tenure of the loans ranges from 12 months to 60 months. 

  

The Company’s impairment assessment and measurement approach is set out in this note. It should be read 

in conjunction with the Summary of significant accounting policies. 

 

Definition of default and cure 

 

The Company considers a financial instrument as defaulted and therefore Stage 3 (credit-impaired) for 

Expected Credit. 

 

Loss (ECL) calculations in all cases when the borrower becomes 90 days past due on its contractual 

payments. As a part of a qualitative assessment of whether a customer is in default, the Company also 

considers a variety of instances that may indicate unlikeness to pay. When such events occur, the Company 

carefully considers whether the event should result in treating the customer as defaulted and therefore 

assessed as Stage 3 for ECL calculations or whether Stage 2, as appropriate. 

 

It is the Company’s policy to consider a financial instrument as ‘cured’ and therefore re-classified out of 

Stage 3 when none of the default criteria have been present for at least three consecutive months. The 

decision whether to classify an asset as Stage 2 or Stage 1 once cured depends on the updated credit grade, 

at the time of the cure, and whether this indicates there has been a significant increase in credit risk 

compared to initial recognition. 
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Exposure at Default (EAD) 

 

The Exposure at Default is an estimate of the exposure at a future default date, considering expected 

changes in the exposure after the reporting date, including repayments of principal and interest, whether 

scheduled by contract or otherwise, expected drawdowns on committed facilities, and accrued interest. 

 

Probability of default (PD) 

 

The Probability of Default is an estimate of the likelihood of default over a given time horizon. To calculate 

the ECL for a Stage 1 loan, the Company assesses the possible default events within 12 months for the 

calculation of the 12 month ECL. For Stage 2 and Stage 3 financial assets, the exposure at default is 

considered for events over the lifetime of the instruments. The Company uses historical information 

wherever available to determine PD. PD is calculated using Incremental 91 DPD approach considering 

fresh slippage using historical information. 

 

Company’s internal credit rating grades and staging criteria for loans are as follows: 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

31. Notes forming part of accounts in relation to MSME 

 

Based on information available with the company, on the status of the suppliers being Micro or small enterprises, on which the 

auditors have relied, the disclosure requirements with regard to the payments made/due to Micro and small Enterprises are given 

below : 

 

Sr.  

No. 

Particulars Year Ended 

31-03-2022 

Year Ended 

31-03-2021 

  Principal Interest Principal Interest 

I Amount due as at the date of Balance 

sheet 

Nil Nil Nil Nil 

II Amount paid beyond the appointed date 

during the year 

Nil Nil Nil Nil 

III Amount of interest due and payable  for 

the period of delay in making payments of 

principal during the year beyond the 

appointed date 

Nil Nil Nil Nil 

IV The amount of interest accrued and 

remaining unpaid as at the date of Balance 

sheet 

Nil Nil Nil Nil 

 

 

32.  The SARS-Cov-2 virus is responsible for Covid-19 that spreads in a world including our country. It contributes to a 

significant deadline and volatility in global and Indian Financial Markets and having a significant decrease in the 

economic activities in international markets including in our country. 

On March 11, 2020 the Covid-19 outbreaks declared as a global pandemic by World Health Organization (WHO). On 

March 24, 2020, the Government of India has announced a strict 21 days lockdown which kept getting on extended 

across the country with gradual and modest relaxations.   

There was no disbursement done during the period however the collection being banking based continued. Further as per 

RBI moratorium period the board of directors of the company has decided to provided certain relaxations to its 

customers, as, Majority of customers are regular paying their dues so In this pandemic situation rather than giving new 

loan to unknown customers of company and to minimize risk, we can increase the timeline of loan to the customers 

whoever demand after considering other situation/s in case to case basis. 

The Company has, based on current available information estimated and applied management overlays based on the 

policy approved by the Board of Directors for the purpose of determination of the provision for impairment of financial 

assets. Given the uncertainty over the potential macro-economic impact, the Company's management has considered 

internal and external information including credit reports and economic forecasts up to the date of approval of these 

Rating Loan Days past Due (DPD) Stages 

High Grade Not Yet Due Stage 1 

Standard Grade 1 – 30 DPD Stage 1 

Sub – Standard Grade 31 – 60 DPD Stage 2 

Past due but not impaired 61 – 90 DPD Stage 2 

Individually Impaired 91 DPD or Mores Stage 3 
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financial results. Accordingly, the provision for expected credit loss on financial assets as at 31 March 2022 aggregates 

Rs. 138.45 lakh (as at March 31 2021, Rs. 202.04 lakh). 

 

The operations of the Company were shut down as per the lockdown norms of Government of India as given on March 

23, 2020. The administrative work of the company was continued through work from home facility to the best possible 

extent in order to comply with duly applicable legal framework.  

Further, in compliance with the various directives of 'the Government of India, operations of the Company have been, 

resumed in the permitted manner. The company is complying with all the conditions imposed by the Government of 

India, State Government(s), Local authorities and undertaking the necessary measures for safeguarding health & safety of 

the employees of the company. The Company has taken various safety steps such as thermal screening of all employees 

and visitors, maintaining of social distancing at all work places, sanitizing the premises on regular basis and enforcing 

wearing of mask etc. In our efforts for the health and wellbeing of employees, steps have been taken to ensure efficient 

workplace; have moved meetings and trainings to virtual formats up to the extent possible. 

 

Details of impact of Covid-19 on the company: 

Capital and financial resources - The Company has adequate, capital and financial resources to run its business 

operations. 

Profitability- The Company have recognized provisions as on March 31, 2022 towards its assets including loans based on 

the information available at this point of time including economic forecasts and various other (parameters, in accordance 

with the Expected Credit Loss (ECL) method but it is difficult to foresee the final impact, so company keep on 

monitoring the overall situation and will recalibrate the model accordingly. The Company is taking various steps to 

control the operating cost. 

Liquidity position - The current liquidity position of the Company is comfortable and believes that going forward also 

liquidity and internal accruals shall be sufficient to continue business operations. Meanwhile, the company is also in 

discussions with various institutions for raising funds. 

Assets - The economic disruption brought by the COVID-19 lockdown will have a severe impact on the incomes of 

borrowers for several months depending on the intensity and spread of the outbreak. The RBI had provided a 6-month 

moratorium to provide a temporary reprieve but the ability to return to steady state operations depends on how quick the 

industry scales up production. This results in an increase in the credit risk.  

Internal Financial Reporting and Control - The Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial 

controls system over financial reporting. 

We may like to state that the foregoing expressions are initial assessment of the situation and the final impact of any 

activities can only be assessed once the normal economic activities commence and situation stabilizes. 

 

For D G M S & Co. 

Chartered Accountants  

  

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Karnavati Finance Limited 

    

        

        

        

Hiren J. Maru    Raman P Morzaria   Jay R Morzaria  

Partner     Whole time Director    Managing Director  

M. No. 115279   DIN 00203310   DIN 02338864 

FRN: 0112187W     
Place: Mumbai 

Date : 29th May 2022 

UDIN: 22115279AJVIRL4692      

  

    

 Kush R Morzaria   Akanksha Rai  

 Chief Financial Officer   Company Secretary   

 PAN: BAJPM1377E   PAN: BFZPR9132P 
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